
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2019 01 14  Regular Council Agenda.docx 

          
 
 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Neil Belenkie will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, January 14, 2019 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, January 14, 2019 be approved 

as circulated. 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Special Council Meeting, December 3, 2018 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Special Council Meeting held December 3, 2018 be 
 adopted. 
3.2 Regular Council Meeting, December 10, 2018 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held December 10, 2018 be 

adopted. 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
4.1 Brandon Ma & Andrew Bordignon, KPMG, presentation regarding: 

a) Audit Planning Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2018 
b) Governance and Financial Reporting in Local Government 

 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL 
 January 14, 2019 

6:30 PM 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  January 14, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2019 01 14  Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding John Stubbs, 

appointment to the Board of Variance  
Recommendation: 
That the motion dated December 10, 2018 “That John Stubbs re-appointment to 
the Board of Variance be amended to a one year term beginning January 1, 2019 
and ending December 31, 2019” be rescinded; and 
That John Stubbs be re-appointed to the Board of Variance for a three year term 
beginning January 1, 2019 and ending December 31, 2021, in accordance with 
the Local Government Act.  

5.2 Nancy Gomerich, NG Consulting, report dated January 14, 2019 regarding the 
Current Investment Strategy  

 Recommendation: 
 That the Village continue with its current investment strategy as outlined in the 
 Current Investment Strategy report dated January 14, 2019; and 

That the Village amend Policy 196 “Financial Plan – Sources and Uses of Funds” 
to insert a policy statement on investments as follows: 

 “10.  Investments: 
a) Cash investments will be made first to protect and maintain principal 

invested and then to maximize returns; 
b) Liquidity of investments will align with capital and operating needs; and 
c) All available cash investments shall be made with the Municipal 

Finance Authority.” 
5.3 Nancy Gomerich, NG Consulting, presentation regarding Review and Update of 

the Corporate Strategic Plan 
5.4 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Ride Share 

opportunities in the Village 
 Recommendation: 
 That Council direct the Chief Administrative Officer to prepare a Council report 

regarding the potential for Ride Share opportunities in the Village. 
5.5 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Resident Only 

Parking in the Village 
 Recommendation: 
 That Council direct the Chief Administrative Officer to prepare a Council report 

and related Bylaw Amendments regarding Resident Only Parking in the Village. 
6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  January 14, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2019 01 14  Regular Council Agenda.docx 

7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 528, 2018 
 Recommendation: 

That “Village of Belcarra Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 528, 2018 
be adopted. 

8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 
Recommendation: 

 That correspondence item 8.1 to 8.9 be received. 
ACTION ITEMS 

8.1 Charles Wordsworth, Volunteer, ISACA BCAWARE Committee, dated      
 November 13, 2018 regarding Declaration of January 28 – February 5, 2019 as 
 BC Aware Days in the Village of Belcarra 

Recommendation: 
 That Council declare January 28 – February 5, 2019 as BC Aware Days in the 
 Village of Belcarra. 
8.2 Gurinder Mann, Executive Director, CERA Society, dated January 2, 2019, 

Application from Communities Embracing Restorative Action (CERA) Society for 
a Community Grant. 
Recommendation: 

 That a Community Grant in the amount of $353.00 be provided to the Communities 
Embracing Restorative Action (CERA) Society for support of the Community Youth 
Justice Program 2019 fiscal year. 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.3 Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department, Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes of  

September 27, 2018 
8.4 Barb Hobson, Chair, Board of Education, School District No. 43 (Coquitlam), dated 

November 26, 2018 regarding Child Care Task Force 
8.5 Oliver Gruter-Andrew, President and CEO, E-Comm, Emergency Communications 

for BC Incorporated, dated November 30, 2018 regarding Congratulations and 
Invitation to Tour the E-Comm Facility 

8.6 Andrew Gage, Staff Lawyer and Anna Barford, Community Organizer, West Coast 
Environmental Law, dated December 10, 2018 regarding Your Local Climate 
Change Impacts and the Fossil Fuel Industry 

8.7 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, dated December 17, 2018 regarding 
2019 Metro Vancouver Committee Appointments 

8.8 Steve Higginbottom, Community Relations Coordinator, BC Hydro, dated 
December 18, 2018 regarding Lower Mainland Community Relations 2018 Annual 
Report 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  January 14, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2019 01 14  Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.9 Bowinn Ma, MLA (North Vancouver – Lonsdale), Chair and Stephanie Cadieux, 
MLA (Surrey South), Deputy Chair, Legislative Assembly of BC, dated       
December 18, 2018 regarding Call for Written Submissions – Select Standing 
Committee on Crown Corporations  

9. NEW BUSINESS 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
11. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 

That the January 14, 2019 Regular meeting of Council be closed pursuant to the 
Community Charter Section 90 (1) “A part of a Council meeting may be closed to 
the public if the subject matter being considered relates to or is one or more of 
the following: 
      (g)    litigation or potential litigation affecting the municipality;   

 (k)   negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed 
provision of a municipal service that are at their preliminary 
stages and that, in the view of the Council, could reasonably be 
expected to harm the interests of the municipality if they were 
held in public.” 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the January 14, 2019 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 



 
 

             
 
Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting for the Village of Belcarra held December 3, 2018 at the 
Municipal Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC. 
 
Council in Attendance 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Bernie Serné, Superintendent Public Works 
Paula Richardson, Administrative Services Assistant 
Others in Attendance 
Nancy Gomerich, NG Consulting 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Belenkie called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Special Council Meeting, December 3, 2018 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That the agenda for the Special Council Meeting, December 3, 2018 be amended by 

adding: 
“Item 3.1(a) Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding an 

Application for funding from the Union of British Columbia Municipality 
(UBCM) 2019 Community Resiliency Investment Program (CRI), 
FireSmart Community Funding & Supports” 

CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
 December 3, 2018 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



SPECIAL COUNCIL MINUTES  December 3, 2018 

Page 2 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2018 12 03 - Special Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

3. REPORTS 
3.1 a) Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding an Application for 

funding from the Union of British Columbia Municipality (UBCM) 2019 Community 
Resiliency Investment Program (CRI), FireSmart Community Funding & Supports 

 Discussion ensued with regard to the UBCM 2019 Community Resiliency Investment 
Program (CRI), FireSmart Community Funding & Supports grant application. 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 

 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That staff be directed to submit an application to the UBCM 2019 FireSmart Community 

Funding & Supports (CPI) program for funding in the amount of $25,000. for Fuel 
Management Treatment for fuel removal and understory thinning as outlined in the 
application dated December 7, 2018; and 

 That the Village of Belcarra confirm its willingness to provide grant management should 
funding be approved. 

CARRIED 
3.1 Nancy Gomerich, NG Consulting, report dated December 3, 2018 regarding 2019 

Budget – Discussion Items. 
 N. Gomerich noted there are significant items to discuss with regard to the 2019 

Budget and that all items, as discussed, will be brought back for final Budget review 
and adoption. Recommendations are not made and information is provided to Council 
for consideration.  
N. Gomerich noted that the BC Assessment Authority has advised that approximately 
$7,000 will be forthcoming. This revenue is the result of new construction that provided 
additional tax income revenue for the General Fund. 

 Nancy Gomerich outlined the Budget Discussions for 2019 as follows: 
 2019 Budget – Decision Packages: 
 Item 1: Website Development & Maintenance Budget 
 Description: 
 The existing Village website has been maintained by the former Mayor at no cost to the 

Village; the Village must now take over these costs. The Village has issued a Request 
for Proposals (RFP) for development and maintenance of the Village website. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That Council support the 2019 Capital Costs in the Budget at $7,500. for website 

development and maintenance.  
CARRIED 

 Item 2: Public Works Trailer 
 Description: 

Proposal to purchase a quality trailer to expand staff office space. The trailer would be 
placed in the Public Works Yard (replacing the current trailer / container) and would 
serve as the office space for the Public Works Superintendent and two Public Works 
staff and provide additional storage space (to be used primarily for municipal records).  



SPECIAL COUNCIL MINUTES  December 3, 2018 

Page 3 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2018 12 03 - Special Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

The trailer would be fairly basic and would not include: septic or running water – only 
heat and lighting, as is currently in place for the existing trailer. 
Mayor Belenkie outlined the need for additional office space and meeting space for the 
Mayor and Council.  
L. Dysart provided an overview on the proposal for the Public Works Superintendent to 
have an office in a modular trailer with the Public Works staff which would also provide 
for additional record archive storage.  
Considerable discussion ensued. 
Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
That staff research options for one large or two small modular trailers in the range of 
$40,000. - $60,000. and report back for Budget discussion. 

CARRIED 
Item 3: Drainage Study  
Description: 
To complete a study to gather inventory data necessary to complete a drainage asset 
long-term capital and maintenance plan for the Village 
It was noted that Phase 1 of the Drainage Study is complete. The Superintendent of 
Public Works outlined the work that was completed for that study. It was noted that staff 
did all the mapping of culverts, etc. 
Council discussed various aspects of the study. 
Nancy Gomerich commented that staff may apply in April 2019 for a Federation of 
Canadian Municipalities (FCM) grant. She noted that the 2019 Project Budget was 
$50,000., funded: $40,000. from an FCM grant and $10,000. from unappropriated 
surplus. 
Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
That staff look into expanding the scope of the Drainage Study within the $50,000 
budgeted. 

CARRIED 
Item 4 – Mayor & Council Indemnity – Adjustment for 1/3 Allowance becoming Taxable 
January 1, 2019 

 Description: 
To increase the Mayor and Councillors indemnities from $20,832. and $10,446.         
(x4 Councillors) respectively, to offset the impacts of the change in the tax rules making 
the Allowance, being 1/3 of the stated indemnity amounts, fully taxable starting in 2019.  
N. Gomerich advised that the loss of the 1/3 tax free allowance by Municipal Council 
members throughout Canada is considered downloading by the Federal Government. 
Council members concurred that an adjustment to their remuneration will not be made. 
L. Dysart noted that the Council Indemnity Bylaw will go to Council in early 2019 with 
the Vancouver December CPI adjustment, as per the Policy 
 



SPECIAL COUNCIL MINUTES  December 3, 2018 

Page 4 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2018 12 03 - Special Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 Item 5: Mayor & Council Benefits 
 Description: 
 To provide benefits to elected officials. 

Mayor Belenkie noted that research will be required for self funding of the three options 
provided. 
N. Gomerich will confirm with the Auditors as to whether tax is paid prior to the benefit 
payment. It was noted that a minimum of three Council members must join the UBCM 
plan before the February 28, 2019 deadline and remain on the plan for the full 4 year 
term of office. 
Discussion ensued with regard to the Village paying a portion of the premium for 
Council members. 

 Item 6: Elected Officials Seminar 
 Description: 

To provide for the Mayor and Council Members to attend the 3 day LGLA Elected 
Officials Seminar in Richmond. 
Council members consensus was that the 4 Council members who wish to attend the 
seminar will car pool. Accommodations will not be provided.  
Item 7: Increase in Administrative Staff Support (1-2 Days every 2 weeks, being          
.1 FTE to .2 FTE) 
Description: 
To increase funding for additional administrative staff support from .1 FTE (2018 
Budget) to .3 FTE 
L. Dysart outlined the Administrative Support Temp. Staff Services whose work includes 
follow up on parking tickets. 
Mayor Belenkie noted that consideration is given to providing timely service to 
residents without raising taxes.  
Consensus was reached that an additional .1 FTE be provided to a maximum of 
$7,500. 

 Item 8 – Bylaw Enforcement & Waste and Recycle Depot (WARD) Attendant Services 
 Description: 
 To provide for Bylaw Enforcement services. 

N. Gomerich outlined the General Fund and the WARD Fund and the work of staffing 
for WARD and Bylaw Enforcement. 
L. Dysart provided an outline on implementation of the Traffic and Ticketing Bylaw with 
procedures and processes that have been developed. She advised that the WARD 
Attendant took Bylaw Enforcement training at the Justice Institute on her own and is 
now a qualified Bylaw Enforcement Officer. The hours of the Bylaw Enforcement Officer 
are limited during the off season. 
Mayor Belenkie noted that there may be consideration in the future for “resident only” 
parking in the Village. Anmore has implemented resident only parking. Mayor Belenkie 
further noted that Bylaw Enforcement is necessary to support the quality of life for the 
residents in the Village. Discussion ensued regarding the feasibility of using Coquitlam 
Towing. 



SPECIAL COUNCIL MINUTES  December 3, 2018 

Page 5 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2018 12 03 - Special Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

Council members consensus was that the overall cost increase of $8,300. be approved 
for the WARD & Bylaw Enforcement Fund and that Council review this item with the 
2020 Budget discussions. 
Councillor Wilder requested to go on record for non-support of an Attendant at WARD. 

 Item 9 – Records Management Project 
 Description: 

To develop a Records Management Policy for the Village and review and inventory 
current records, disposing of as dictated by the policy. 
N. Gomerich outlined the project and noted that the Records Management work has 
been deferred in previous years. 
Mayor Belenkie noted that staff may request policy information from Anmore who have 
recently updated their Records Management system.  
L. Dysart noted that the long range proposal would be to have an electronic system 
implemented. 
Mayor Belenkie proposed an additional study which would include a short term plan. 
He suggested that the Chief Administrative Officer consider how to manage the existing 
paper in the interim and to identify what the project might look like electronically. There 
would be no dollar value placed on Records Management until there is more research 
completed. 

 Item 10: Waste and Recycle Depot (WARD): Curbside Chipping 
 Description: 

Curbside chipping pick up costs are not budgeted for but have been funded from the 
unused WARD Depot Attendant budget. As the budget in 2019 will be revised 
downward, this funding will no longer be available. This proposal is to provide curbside 
chipping twice per year. 
The Superintendent of Public Works outlined the current curbside program, completed 
by an outside contractor, twice a year and used by approximately 50 residents. He 
advised that the chipping program had previously been managed by Public Works staff 
which took three days with a much smaller chipper. Residents are encouraged to put 
chipping in the organics bin at the Waste and Recycle Depot (WARD). 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
That one chipping event be approved per year at a cost of $2,700.; and 
That staff prepare educational material for residents. 

CARRIED 
Councillor Begg voted in Opposition 

  
 
 
 
 
 



SPECIAL COUNCIL MINUTES  December 3, 2018 

Page 6 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2018 12 03 - Special Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 Item 11 – Wildfire Assessment Project 
 Description: 

Take actions to reduce the risks associated with forest fires in / around the Village. 
Initial work would focus on the removal of combustible materials such as brush / dead 
trees etc. (referred to as fuel management), followed by an update of the Village’s 
Wildfire Preparedness Plan which was completed in 2007. 
Council passed a motion previously on Item 3.1 a) directing Staff to apply for the    
UBCM 2019 FireSmart Grand Program. 
The Superintendent of Public Works outlined the Wildfire grant proposal. The 
Community Wildfire Protection plan for both Belcarra and Anmore was completed in 
2005. He proposed that a pilot project include fuel management with under brush clean 
up take place behind the Village Hall, the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department Hall and 
the Public Works building. 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
That Council support the UBCM 2019 FireSmart Community Funding & Supports (CPI) 
program for funding as written. 

CARRIED 
A recess was called at 9:15 pm. 
The meeting reconvened at 9:20 pm. 
 Item 12 – Village Liquor License 
 Description: 
 To provide for the purchase of a Village Liquor license. 

Considerable discussion ensued with regard to residents use of the Village Hall as a 
public meeting space. The possibility of having a fridge with beer and wine paid for by 
users according to an honour system was discussed with a view to this proposal being 
cost neutral. Village liability, Hall cleanup and user accessibility were further discussed. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That staff research the provision of a Liquor License for the Village Hall and report back 
to Council. 

CARRIED 
 Budget Meeting Schedule 

N. Gomerich provided a schedule of meetings required to complete the Budget 
including the Strategic Plan. Staff will propose a schedule of meeting dates to Council 
for 2019. 

  
 
 
  
 
 



SPECIAL COUNCIL MINUTES  December 3, 2018 

Page 7 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2018 12 03 - Special Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 Item 13 – Planning Consulting / Services 
 Description: 

The annual 2018 budget for Planning Consulting is $20,000. The previous Council 
approved a 5 year contract Planning Consultants to a maximum of $5,000 per month, 
or $60,000. per year. In accordance with recent amendments to the Village Fees & 
Charges Bylaw, parties for whom planning consulting services are incurred, may be 
billed by the Village for these costs. Given recent and future expected development in 
the Village, it is recommended that the Planning Budget be increased by $10,000. per 
year to a total of $30,000. 
Discussion ensued with regard to planning services which may be required to deal with 
the decision of Port Moody Council related to road access at Ioco Road and Bert Flynn 
Park. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That the 2019 Budget for Planning Consulting / Services be increased to a total of 
$30,000. 

 CARRIED 
 Item 14 – Building Inspection 
 Description: 

Building Inspection services were provided by the previous Public Works 
Superintendent. Following the retirement of the Superintendent, services have been 
provided by the Building Inspector for three days a week. To date the costs of the 
Building Inspector have been funded from higher, budgeted, building permit revenue 
fees and the unappropriated surplus. Anticipated building permit revenues have not 
materialized and funding from unappropriated surplus is not sustainable long-term, thus 
an increase in tax revenue is required to support this function. 
N. Gomerich noted that municipalities may not profit from fees. The budget was not 
increased when the previous Public Works Superintendent and Building Inspector 
retired and the positions were divided. She advised that $7,000 should be added to the 
budget.  
N. Gomerich indicated that staff review Building Inspection fees and obtain information 
from comparable municipalities and bring back options with the objective of achieving 
net neutrality. 

 Item 15 – Grants/Donations – Information Item 
 Description: 

The Village has a limited grant / donation budget, with grants made typically repeated 
every year. Under the Community Charter grants to businesses are limited to the 
specific situations as detailed under the Act. 
N. Gomerich noted that due to the additional budget information to review, discussions 
will continue at the Regular Council Meeting on December 10, 2018. 
Mayor Belenkie advised that the Major Roads Network (MRN) Grant Application for an 
extension of Belcarra roadway coverage has again been denied by TransLink. 

 
 



SPECIAL COUNCIL MINUTES  December 3, 2018 

Page 8 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2018 12 03 - Special Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

4. ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 

 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the December 3, 2018 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 10:10 pm. 

CARRIED 
 

Certified Correct: 
 
 
 

 
    
Neil Belenkie  
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



 
 

             
 
Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting for the Village of Belcarra held December 10, 2018 at the 
Municipal Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC. 
 
Council in Attendance 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Bernie Serné, Superintendent of Public Works 
Paula Richardson, Administrative Services Assistant 
Others in Attendance 
Nancy Gomerich, NG Consulting 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Belenkie called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, December 10, 2018 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, December 10, 2018 be approved as 

circulated. 
CARRIED 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Special Council Meeting, November 20, 2018 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That the minutes from the Special Council Meeting held November 20, 2018 be 
adopted.  

CARRIED 
 
 
 
 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
 December 10, 2018 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.2



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  December 10, 2018 

Page 2 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2018 12 10 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

3.2 Regular Council Meeting, November 26, 2018 
Discussion ensued with regard to an amendment of the minutes as presented.            
L. Dysart advised that the minutes are to reflect action, which are the motions, plus a 
brief summary of discussion and are not verbatim.  
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 

 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held November 26, 2018 be 
adopted; 
Discussion ensued regarding a sentence in Item 5.2. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That the minutes of the meeting be amended by deleting the following sentence on 
Item 5.2: 

“Councillor Begg agreed to meet with Mr. Reid with the possible formation of      
a group to discuss this matter”  

The motion as amended was voted on and CARRIED 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

No items presented. 
 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated December 10, 2018 regarding 

Re-appointment to Board of Variance 
 L. Dysart outlined the re-appointment to the Board of Variance. She noted that a report 

will go to Council in January 2019 with regard to the structure of various Committees 
and Terms of Reference. 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 

 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
That John Stubbs be re-appointed to the Board of Variance for a three year term 
beginning January 1, 2019 and ending December 31, 2021.  
Council considered a one year appointment due to a review of Committee appointments. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That John Stubbs re-appointment to the Board of Variance be amended to a one year 

term beginning January 1, 2019 and ending December 31, 2019. 
 The motion as amended was CARRIED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  December 10, 2018 

Page 3 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2018 12 10 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

5.2 Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 528, 2018 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding the Revenue 
Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 528, 2018.  

 Nancy Gomerich outlined the Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 528, 2018. 
She noted that it is a Procedural Bylaw that must be passed before the end of the fiscal 
year. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 

That the Village of Belcarra Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 528, 2018 be 
read a first, second and third time. 

CARRIED 
5.3 Nancy Gomerich, NG Consulting, continued from the December 3, 2018 Special 

Council meeting regarding 2019 Budget – Discussion Items. 
N. Gomerich provided an overview with a PowerPoint on the following: 
Capital Works 
• Approach to Budgeting & Funding Capital Works 

- Asset Management 

N. Gomerich provided an overview of Asset Management strategies including 
effectively tracking assets and their lifecycle costs to ensure a funding plan is in place 
for the long term. Considerable discussion ensued. 

• Capital Funding Options 
- Move to Lower Service – Level / Standard 
- Existing Capital Reserves 
- Grants 
- Debt 

N. Gomerich noted that internal borrowing may be accomplished using funds from 
other Reserves in the short term. She noted that the Major Road Network (MRN) Grant 
provides approximately $30,000. per year for Capital Works plus 50% of works for 
newly approved MRN works. Discussion ensued with regard to the debt limits of 
municipalities which are based on definable revenues. 

• Summary by Fund 
1. Waste and Recycle Depot (WARD) 

Discussion ensued with regard to: 
- Replacement cost, amortization, and Capital Funding  
- Whether the detailed information provided was available for other assets 

2. Water 
Discussion ensued with regard to: 
- Fees for residents connected and not connected to the water system  
- Water metering 
- Charges levied by other municipalities 
- Periodic and ongoing maintenance plus mandated testing 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  December 10, 2018 

Page 4 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2018 12 10 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

3. General 
Discussion ensued with regard to: 
- Asset categories in the General Fund 

a) Roads (and related retaining walls, bus stops, etc.) 
b) Drainage 
c) Trails, Multi-Use Court, other recreation 
d) Buildings (Municipal Hall, Public Works buildings) 
e) Public Works and Administration Equipment (computers, equipment, 

vehicles, etc.) 
- Approximately 7 km of roads in the Village are part of the MRN 
- Long-term Capital Plans for required for Drainage, Trails & Buildings 

 
A recess was called at 8:10 pm 
The meeting reconvened 8:20 pm 

 Capital Works Projects for Consideration  
 All Capital Projects are funded from Capital Reserves that are funded annually from 
 revenue (i.e. taxation / fees) 
 General Fund 

1. Technology for Council – $4,800. – cell phones – Council did not support 
2. Technology for Council – Ipads – $3,000. – Council did not support 
3. Information Technology – $6,000. – Supported by Council 
4. Emergency Preparedness – $28,000. – ($25,000 Grant funding approved for 2018) 
5. Public Works Modular Trailer for office space and Records Management – $40,000. 

– $60,000. – Supported by Council 
6. Lighting at Bus Stops (8) – $200,000. – Mayor Belenkie advised of a commitment by 

Honourable Selina Robinson, MLA 
7. Reader Board – $32,000. – Council did not support. 
8. Multi–Use Court - $120,000. – Council did not support. 
9. 3600 Block Bedwell Bay Road – $16,000. (additional $16,000. from MRN Grant) 

Culvert failed – Council requested that the Superintendent of Public Works prepare a 
list of items outlined in priority order.  

10. Young Avenue Turnaround – $150,000. – Council did not support – Council 
suggested that the Superintendent of Public Works use alternate methods to provide 
safety while plowing this road, including chains on the front wheels of the plow truck. 

11. Tatlow Trail – Phase 2 - $18,000. – Council did not support further work at this time. 
12. Salish Trail Steps – $22,000. – Council did not support. Project deferred with a view 

to development of a Community Group to complete work. Sign to be posted “Use at 
Own Risk”. 

13. Marine Avenue – $30,000. – Supported by Council – The Superintendent of Public 
Works has a list of the sections of Marine Avenue. 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  December 10, 2018 

Page 5 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2018 12 10 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

14. Midden Road – $60,000. – Council recommended patching the road rather than a full 
repair. The expectation is that traffic will decrease with the implementation of the 
proposed Resident Only Parking in the Village. 

Water Fund 
15. Main Avenue Auto Flusher - $10,000. – Supported by Council. 
WARD Fund 
16. Various - $5,000. – Supported by Council – to streamline operations.  

 N. Gomerich will provide Council with updated Budget discussion material at the 
 January 14, 2019 Council meeting to reflect items discussed.  

Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
That the 2019 Budget – Discussion Items report from N. Gomerich, Financial 
Consultant, dated December 3, 2018 be received for information. 

 CARRIED 
6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS  

Mayor Belenkie suggested that Council become members of the Tri-Cities Chamber of 
Commerce.   
Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
That Council approve membership in the Tri-Cities Chamber of Commerce at the cost 
of $362.00 per annum. 

CARRIED 
7. BYLAWS 
7.1  Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004, Amendment  

Bylaw No. 527, 2018 
Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
That “Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004, Amendment Bylaw 
No. 527, 2018” be adopted. 

CARRIED 
8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 

Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 

 That correspondence item 8.1 to 8.5 be received. 
CARRIED 

INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.1 Honourable John Horgan, Premier, Province of British Columbia, dated          

November 13, 2018 regarding Congratulations on the Election 
8.2 Honourable Selina Robinson, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, Province of 

British Columbia, dated November 15, 2018 regarding Congratulations on the Election 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  December 10, 2018 

Page 6 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\2018 12 10 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 
8.3 Honourable David Eby, Attorney General and Honourable Mike Farnsworth, Minister      

of Public Safety and Solicitor General, Province of British Columbia, dated              
November 22, 2018 regarding Congratulations on Election and Retail Sale of             
Non-Medical Cannabis 

8.4 Gordon Ruth, Auditor General for Local Government, Province of British Columbia,  
dated November 29, 2018 regarding Congratulations on Election and Introduction 

8.5 Isobel Mackenzie, Seniors Advocate, Province of British Columbia, dated           
November 30, 2018 regarding Congratulations on the Election   

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 Councillor Begg queried with regard to a “No Exit” sign at the top of Kelly Road as the 
 trail is damaged where cars turn around. The Superintendent of Public works noted that 
 a “No Exit” sign will cost approximately $30.00. 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 Dave Warren, 4925 Robson Road, queried with regard to pending litigation with the 
 Village. 

Jim Chisholm, 4505 Belcarra Bay, queried with regard to operation of the website.  
11. ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That the December 10, 2018 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 10:10 pm. 

CARRIED 
 
Certified Correct: 
 
 
 

 
    
Neil Belenkie  
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



Village of 
Belcarra

   
   

  

      
      

Audit Planning Report for the 
year ended December 31, 2018

Dated January 14, 2019

kpmg.ca/audit

prichardson
Typewritten Text
4.1 a)



The contacts
at KPMG in
connection
with this report
are:

Table of contents

      

Considerations in developing our audit plan

Materiality

Area’s of audit focus and risk

Key deliverables and milestones

Annual inquiries of Council

2

The audit of today, tomorrow & the future

The 2018 Auditors’ Reports

Current developments

Appendices

Brandon Ma, CPA, CA
Engagement Partner (*)
Tel: 604.691.3562
bjma@kpmg.ca

Andrew Bordignon, CPA, CA
Senior Manager
Tel: 604.455.4017
andrewbordignon@kpmg.ca

This Audit Planning Report should not be used for any other
purpose or by anyone other than the those charged with
governance. KPMG shall have no responsibility or liability for
loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as
this Audit Planning Report has not been prepared for, and is
not intended for, and should not be used by, any third party or
for any other purpose.

(*) We have made a change to the Lead Engagement Partner
providing audit services to the Village of Belcarra. Brandon
has been introduced to and has met with senior management
as part of our audit planning process.



Changes in accounting standards

Considerations in developing 
our Audit Plan

3

We are pleased to provide for your review the following
information relating to the planned scope and timing for the audit
of the financial statements of the Village of Belcarra (the
“Village”) for the year ended December 31, 2018.

The following new accounting standards have been approved
by the Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”) and are
effective for the Village’s 2018 fiscal year:

 Related party disclosures
 Inter-entity transactions
 Assets
 Contingent assets
 Contractual rights

Management has commenced work to adopt the new
accounting standards.

See page 7

Audit and business risks

Our audit is risk-focused. In planning our audit, we have had
discussions with management to get an update on changes in
the operations. We have taken into account key areas of focus
for financial reporting in our audit plan. These include:

• Tangible capital assets 
• Legal claim

See pages 5-6



Our Materiality levels

We will report:

Corrected audit misstatements

Uncorrected audit misstatements

Materiality

4

       

    

Materiality 
$50,000
2.7% of budgeted expenses
(2017:  $40,000, 2.2% of budgeted 
expenses)

$2,500 $50,000 

Misstatements reported to
Council
Materiality for the financial
statements as a whole

(2017: $2,000) (2017: $40,000)

Materiality Benchmark
Budgeted Expenses
$1.88 Million 
(2017: $1.85 Million)

Materiality represents the level at which we think misstatements will reasonably
influence users of the financial statements. It considers both quantitative and
qualitative factors.

To respond to aggregation risk, we design our procedures to detect misstatements
at a lower level of materiality.

Professional standards require us to re-assess materiality at the completion of our
audit based on period-end results or new information in order to confirm whether the
amount determined for planning purposes remains appropriate.

   
         

    
         



5

Tangible capital assets Tangible capital assets represent a significant portion
of assets for the Village.

• Detailed testing of asset additions, including inspection of supporting documentation to determine if
additions are capital in nature and to test accuracy of amounts recorded.

• Detailed testing of dispositions including inspection of supporting documentation and assessing if the gain
or loss on disposition has been recorded appropriately.

• Review the reasonableness of estimated useful lives and amortization recognized.

• Review agreements for contractual commitments and related disclosure requirements.

Areas of audit focus
Why are we focusing here?

Our audit approach 

Areas of focus



6

Legal claim The Village was named as a defendant in a claim in
December 2017 for wrongful and reckless disregard of
the rights of the plaintiff arising out of access to and use
of the wharf in the water lot fronting the plaintiff’s
property.

• Discuss legal claims with management as well as review legal invoices and Council meeting minutes.

• Obtain written confirmation from the Village’s external legal counsel.

Areas of audit focus (continued)
Why are we focusing here?

Our audit approach 

Areas of focus



7

New accounting standard New accounting standards under PSAB are effective
for the Village’s 2018 financial statements: Related
party disclosures, Inter-entity transactions, Assets,
Contingent assets, Contractual rights.

• Review management’s assessment of the impact of adopting the new accounting standards.

• If adjustments or disclosures are required as a result of adopting the new accounting standards, perform
testing over the accuracy of the amounts recorded or disclosed.

• Assess completeness of adjustments or disclosures that are required as a result of adopting the new
accounting standards.

Areas of audit focus (continued)
Why are we focusing here?Areas of focus

Our audit approach 



Why is it significant?

Audit risks
Professional Requirements

Our audit approach 

8

Fraud risk from management override of controls This is a presumed fraud risk. We have not identified
any specific additional risks of management override
relating to this audit.

Professional requirements

• As the risk is not rebuttable, our audit methodology incorporates the required procedures in professional
standards to address this risk. These procedures include testing of journal entries and other adjustments,
performing a retrospective review of estimates and evaluating the business rationale of significant unusual
transactions.

• We have not identified incremental risks of management override of controls specific to the City.



9

2018 Audit Plan Year-end fieldwork

Interim fieldwork
Provide 2018 Audit Findings 
Report and Auditors’ Report

January 2019 January 2019 March 2019 April 2019

Key deliverables and milestones

9



Independence considerations

Additional services+
We will request pre-approval in accordance with your pre-approval 
process for any additional services not listed above that arise 
during the course of 
our engagement.

SEC and PCAOB independence rules permit an auditor to provide 
services in addition to audit services, on condition that such services 
are not prohibited. We believe that the previously listed proposed 
services are not prohibited under SEC and PCAOB independence 
rules.

We have determined that the previously listed proposed services do 
not impair our independence when taking into consideration the four 
overarching principles included in the SEC independence rules:

Not having mutuality of interest with an audit client

1. Not auditing one’s own work

2. Not acting as management of an audit client

3. Not acting as an advocate for an audit client.

The Company’s personnel has the capaVillage and expertise to make 
all decisions about the service listed above and as a result, we will not 
be in a position of performing management functions or making 
management decisions.

10

Professional auditing standards require that we annually inquire concerning
Council’s oversight of management’s process for identifying and responding
to the risks of fraud with the Village. Accordingly, we ask whether you:

 Are aware of, or have identified any instances of, actual, suspected,
possible or alleged non-compliance of laws and regulations or fraud,
including misconduct or unethical behavior related to financial reporting or
misappropriation of assets? If so, have these instances been appropriately
addressed to your satisfaction?

 Are aware of any significant fraud risks facing the Village?

 Believe that Council exercises effective oversight of management’s
process for identifying and responding to the risk of fraud in the Village and
these internal controls that management has established to mitigate these
fraud risks?

 Are aware of the Village entering into any significant unusual transactions?

Please provide your response to the above questions to Brandon Ma,
Engagement Partner either by phone at 604.691.3562 or email at
bjma@kpmg.ca.

Annual inquiries of Council



The audit of today, tomorrow & the future
As part of KPMG’s technology leadership, our audit 
practice has developed technologies and alliances to 
continuously enhance our capabilities and deliver an 
exceptional audit experience.

Technology empowers us with deep analysis over 
your financial information, focusing our effort and 
interactions on the areas of greatest risk and 
minimizing disruption to your business.

Technology we may use today

Tool Benefit to audit

Enhanced focus on the risks 
within the business

Increasing automation
in routine areas

Broader, deeper 
views of your data, 
and richer, more informed 
perspectives on risks

Consistent results, 
early issue
identification

Strong business 
acumen & advanced 
technology skills

Connectivity

People
D&A Ledger 

Analysis

Advanced 
Capabilities

Risk 
Assessment

KPMG 
Clara

Harness the power of 
digital analytics for 
deeper insights and 
increased quality

Analytics

11

        

KPMG Clara Advanced 
Capabilities

KPMG Clara Advanced Capabilities leverage our data and analytics capabilities, enabling us to analyze 100% of your general ledger data in the planning and account
analysis stage and adjust our planned audit approach accordingly to target the areas of greatest risk. It allows us to use automation in performing our audit procedures
over accounts such as purchases and payables and journal entries.

Visualization Tool Our Visualization tool is a powerful and flexible end-to-end analytics platform which we leverage to display dynamic visualization of your data. This enables us to provide
valuable insights to your business throughout our audit process.

Account Analysis Tool Our account analysis tool provides meaningful general ledger data insights during the planning phase of the audit that can be used to assist the engagement team in
obtaining a more thorough understanding of the business processes and underlying flow of transactions through utilization of Account Analysis, Visual Ledger and Journal
Entry Analysis functional features. Our tool enables a more precise risk assessment and development of a tailored audit approach.

Journal Entry Analysis Our journal entry tool assists in the performance of detailed journal entry testing based on engagement-specific risk identification and circumstances. Our tool provides
auto-generated journal entry population statistics and focusses our audit effort on journal entries that are riskier in nature.

Data & Analytics Routines We use data and analytics routines where appropriate to perform substantive testing.

Data Extraction & Analytics 
Tools

Our data extraction tools assist with risk assessment procedures and perform automated audit procedures in key cycles using data extracted directly from your ERP
system.



The audit of today, tomorrow & the future

Technology under development

Tools Benefit to audit

12

Business process mining 
(BPM)

BPM harnesses sub-ledger analytics and provides us with a deeper understanding of your processes. Our BPM tool is currently being piloted globally
and will be coming soon to Canada. The tool provides immediate visualization of how 100% of your transactions are being processed to complement
your process narratives and flow charts. A deeper understanding of your processes enhances our understanding of your business. This will ensure
our team is focused on auditing the right risks and leveraging your team’s resources efficiently. It also helps us identify inefficiencies or manual
workarounds in a process and highlights where the process is under stress.

Artificial Intelligence 
Financial statement 
disclosure analysis Tool

Our artificial intelligence capability will compare the Village’s financial statement disclosures against existing, new, and modified accounting guidance
and pronouncements, in addition to comparing them against peer organizations. We’ll be able to share with you not only how your disclosures
compare to the requirements but also to your peer group.

Sentiment Analysis Sentiment analysis is about scanning newsfeeds, social media and public data to get a real-time view of your brand while flagging emerging risks in
the process. This allows us to highlight trends, and can also help to identify hotspots by topic or geography. If we see a spike in ‘noise,’ we investigate
and discuss with you, as well as make an assessment of the impact on our audit.

Optical Contract Reader 
& Analysis Tool

Our Optical Contract Reader & Analysis Tool provides us with capabilities to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the contract review process.
This works by automating the ingestion of contracts and related source documents and extracting and summarizing key terms for the audit
engagement team’s consideration, in turn providing increased coverage of the population and resulting in greater audit quality. The tool can also be
used to read unstructured source documents in PDF format, extracting certain data such as invoice date, invoice number, account number, order
number and total amount. This data is then compiled and compared to structured data from the general ledger. Time savings generated from this
intelligent automation solution will allow our team to focus their efforts on areas of greater risk.

Robotic Process 
Automation (RPA)

This application of cognitive computing technology allows our team to configure computer software—or a “robot”—to capture and interpret existing
applications for processing a transaction, manipulating data, triggering responses, and communicating with other digital systems. Through improving
efficiencies on routine transactions, this enables us to re-direct our efforts to areas of greater risk or value and to increase our coverage over more of
the population and increasing our audit quality.

We continue to make significant investments in enhanced methodologies, new technologies and strategic alliances with leading technology
companies that can have a transformative impact on auditing, and more broadly, financial reporting. KPMG is investing in the development of
innovative audit technologies through both internal solutions and through alliances with technology firms such as Finger Food, Microsoft, IBM Watson
and others. We are committed to investing in cognitive technology to develop external auditing tools and technologies. Cognitive technology will
enable us to teach a machine how to perceive, reason, and learn like a human being. This will be transformative to our profession, and will directly
benefit the Village now and in the future.

We are developing intelligent automation to enable programmed reviews of unstructured data in source documents; freeing our professionals to focus
their efforts on areas of greater risk. This may sound simple, but it’s actually quite powerful, with complex underlying technologies.



The 2018 Auditors’ Reports

13

Background

In response to stakeholders demanding more
than a binary pass/fail opinion from the auditors’
report, the new and revised auditor reporting
standards have introduced significant changes to
the traditional auditors’ report we provide.

In April 2017, the Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board (“AASB”) in Canada approved
the new and revised auditor reporting standards
as Canadian Auditing Standards (CASs).

 Re-ordering of the auditors’ report including moving opinion to the first
section.

 Separate section on “Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” if a
material uncertainty is identified.

 Separate section on “Other Information” (e.g. annual report).

 Expanded descriptions of management’s responsibilities, including those
related to assessing the Village’s ability to continue as a going concern.

 New description of responsibilities of those charged with governance
(Council).

 Expanded descriptions of auditors’ responsibilities.

Currently, the reporting of Key Audit Matters (“KAMs”) in the auditors’ report
is only applicable when required by law or regulation or when the auditor is
engaged to do so.

Highlights of changes to your 2018 auditors’ reports



The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
Expected form of the Village’s auditors’ report on the financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Mayor and Council of the Village of Belcarra

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of the Village of Belcarra (the “Village”), which comprise:

• The statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018

• the statement of operations for the year then ended

• the statement of change in net debt for the year then ended

• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended

• and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies

(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Village as at 
December 31, 2018, and its results of operations, its changes in net financial assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our 
auditors’ report.  

We are independent of the Village in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

14



The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
Expected form of the Village’s auditors’ report on the financial statements 

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information, other than the financial statements 
and the auditors’ report thereon, included in the 2018 Annual Report.  

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit and remain alert for indications that the other information appears to be materially misstated.

We obtained the information, other than the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon, included in the 2018 Annual Report 
as at the date of this auditors’ report. If, based on the work we have performed on this other information, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact in the auditors’ report.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

15



The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
Expected form of the Village’s auditors’ report on the financial statements

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Canadian public 
sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Village’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Village or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Village’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

16



The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
Expected form of the Village’s auditors’ report on the financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Village’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause Village to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

17



The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
Expected form of the Village’s auditors’ report for the Home Owners’ Grants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Village of Belcarra and Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing

Opinion
We have audited the financial information in the accompanying Form C2 – Home Owner Grant: Treasurer/Auditor Certificate 
comprised of total Home Owner Grants of $xxx, total reimbursement by the Province of British Columbia (the “Province”) of $xxx, and 
total balance due from the Province of $xxx of the Village of Belcarra (the “Entity”) for the year ended December 31, 2018, and notes, 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as the “Certificate”).

In our opinion, the financial information in the accompanying Form C2 – Home Owner Grant: Treasurer/Auditor Certificate of the 
Entity for the year ended December 31, 2018 is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the financial reporting
provisions of Section 12(1) of the Home Owner Grant Act.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Certificate” section of our auditors’ report.

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Certificate in 
Canada and we have fulfilled our other responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

18



The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
Expected form of the Village’s auditors’ report for the Home Owners’ Grants

Emphasis of Matter – Financial Reporting Framework
We draw attention to Note 1 to the Certificate, which describes the applicable financial reporting framework. 

The Certificate is prepared to assist the Entity to meet the requirements of Section 12(1) of the Home Owner Grant Act. 

As a result, the Certificate may not be suitable for another purpose.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter – Restriction on Use
Our report is intended solely for the Entity and the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing and should not be used by other parties.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Certificate
Management is responsible for the preparation of the Certificate in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of Section 12(1) 
of the Home Owner Grant Act, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of a 
Certificate that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Certificate, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charges with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Certificate
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Certificate as a whole is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 

19



The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
Expected form of the Village’s auditors’ report for the Home Owners’ Grants

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Certificate.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Certificate, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

• The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the Certificate or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

20



The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
Expected form of the Village’s report on compliance with the School Act

INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER’S REASONABLE ASSURANCE REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
To the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing

We have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement of the accompanying statement of the Village of Belcarra’s compliance 
during the period of January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018, with subsection 2 and 3 of section 124 of Part 8 of the School Act (“the 
specified requirements”).

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for measuring and evaluating the Village of Belcarra’s compliance with the specified requirements and for 
preparing the Village of Belcarra’s statement of compliance. Management is also responsible for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the Village of Belcarra’s compliance with the specified requirements.

Our Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express a reasonable assurance opinion on management’s statement based on the evidence we have 
obtained. We conducted our reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with Canadian Standard on Assurance Engagements 
3530, Attestation Engagements to Report on Compliance. This standard requires that we plan and perform this engagement to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether management’s statement is fairly stated, in all material respects.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an engagement conducted in accordance with this 
standard will always detect a material instance of non-compliance with specified requirements when it exists. Instances of non-
compliance can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the decisions of users of our report. A reasonable assurance compliance reporting engagement involves 
performing procedures to obtain evidence about management’s statement of the entity’s compliance with specified requirements. The 
nature, timing and extent of procedures selected depends on our professional judgment, including an assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of management’s statement, whether due to fraud or error, and involves obtaining evidence about 
management’s statement.

21



The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
Expected form of the Village’s report on compliance with the School Act

We believe the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Information relevant to the 
Village of Belcarra’s compliance with the specified requirements is set out in management’s statement of compliance.

Our Independence and Quality Control
We have complied with the relevant rules of professional conduct/code of ethics applicable to the practice of public accounting and 
related to assurance engagements, issued by various professional accounting bodies, which are founded on fundamental principles 
of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behaviour. 

The firm applies Canadian Standard on Quality Control 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial 
Statements, and Other Assurance Engagements and, accordingly, maintains a comprehensive system of quality control, including 
documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal 
and regulatory requirements.

Opinion
In our opinion, management’s statement that the Village of Belcarra complied with the specified requirements established in 
subsection 2 and 3 of section 124 of Part 8 of the School Act during the period January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018, is fairly stated, 
in all material respects.

We do not provide a legal opinion on the Village of Belcarra’s compliance with the specified requirements.

Purpose of Statement
Management’s statement of compliance has been prepared to report to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing on the Village of 
Belcarra’s compliance with the specified requirements. As a result, management’s statement of compliance may not be suitable for
another purpose.

22



Current developments

23

Public Sector Accounting Standards

Standard Summary and implications

Asset Retirement 
Obligations

– A new standard has been approved that is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2021.

– The new standard addresses the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of legal obligations 
associated with retirement of tangible capital assets in productive use. Retirement costs would be recognized as an 
integral cost of owning and operating tangible capital assets. PSAB currently contains no specific guidance in this area.

– The ARO standard would require the public sector entity to record a liability related to future costs of any legal 
obligations to be incurred upon retirement of any controlled tangible capital assets (“TCA”). The amount of the initial 
liability would be added to the historical cost of the asset and amortized over its useful life.

– As a result of the new standard, the public sector entity would have to: 

• consider how the additional liability will impact net debt, as a new liability will be recognized with no corresponding 
increase in a financial asset;

• carefully review legal agreements, senior government directives and legislation in relation to all controlled TCA to 
determine if any legal obligations exist with respect to asset retirements;

• begin considering the potential effects on the organization as soon as possible to coordinate with resources 
outside the finance department to identify AROs and obtain information to estimate the value of potential AROs to 
avoid unexpected issues.

Revenue – A new standard has been approved that is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022.

– The new standard establishes a single framework to categorize revenues to enhance the consistency of revenue 
recognition and its measurement. 

– The standard notes that in the case of revenues arising from an exchange, a public sector entity must ensure the 
recognition of revenue aligns with the satisfaction of related performance obligations. 

– The standard notes that unilateral revenues arise when no performance obligations are present, and recognition 
occurs when there is authority to record the revenue and an event has happened that gives the public sector entity the 
right to the revenue.



Current developments (continued)

24

Public Sector Accounting Standards

Standard Summary and implications

Financial 
Instruments and 
Foreign Currency 
Translation

– New accounting standards, PS3450 Financial Instruments, PS2601 Foreign Currency Translation, PS1201 Financial 
Statement Presentation and PS3041 Portfolio Investments have been approved by PSAB and are effective for years 
commencing on or after April 1, 2021.

– Equity instruments quoted in an active market and free-standing derivatives are to be carried at fair value. All other 
financial instruments, including bonds, can be carried at cost or fair value depending on the government’s choice and 
this choice must be made on initial recognition of the financial instrument and is irrevocable.

– Hedge accounting is not permitted.

– A new statement, the Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses, will be included in the financial statements. 
Unrealized gains and losses incurred on fair value accounted financial instruments will be presented in this statement. 
Realized gains and losses will continue to be presented in the statement of operations.

Employee Future 
Benefit Obligations

– The Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”) has initiated a review of sections PS3250 Retirement Benefits and 
PS3255 Post-Employment Benefits, Compensated Absences and Termination Benefits. Given the complexity of issues 
involved and potential implications of any changes that may arise from this review, the project will be undertaken in 
phases. Phase I will address specific issues related to measurement of employment benefits. Phase II will address 
accounting for plans with risk sharing features, multi-employer defined benefit plans and sick leave benefits.

– Two Invitations to Comment were issued and have closed. The first Invitation to Comment sought guidance on whether 
the deferral provisions in existing public sector standards remain appropriate and justified and the appropriateness of 
accounting for various components of changes in the value of the accrued benefit obligation and plan assets. The 
second Invitation to Comment sought guidance on the present value measurement of accrued benefit obligations.

– A third Invitation to Comment seeks guidance on non-traditional pension plans. The deadline for responses to the third 
Invitation to Comment is February 1, 2019.

– The ultimate objective of this project is to issue a new employment benefits section to replace existing guidance.



Current developments (continued)

25

Public Sector Accounting Standards 

Standard Summary and implications

Public Private 
Partnerships (“P3”)

– A taskforce was established in 2016 as a result of increasing use of public private partnerships for the delivery of 
services and provision of assets.

– A Statement of Principles (“SOP”) was issued in August 2017 which proposes new requirements for recognizing, 
measuring and classifying infrastructure procured through a public private partnership. An Exposure Draft of the new 
standard is expected to be issued in December 2018. 

– The SOP proposes that recognition of infrastructure by the public sector entity would occur when it controls the 
purpose and use of the infrastructure, when it controls access and the price, if any, charged for use, and it controls any 
significant interest accumulated in the infrastructure when the P3 ends.  

– The SOP proposes the public sector entity recognize a liability when it needs to pay cash or non-cash consideration to 
the private sector partner for the infrastructure.  

International 
Strategy

– PSAB is in the process of reviewing its current approach towards International Public Sector Accounting Standards. 
This project may result in changes to the role PSAB plays in setting standards in Canada. 

– A consultation paper was released for comment in May 2018 and has closed. The consultation paper described the 
decision-making criteria PSAB expects to consider in evaluating the international strategy that best serves the public 
sector. It also introduced four proposed international strategies that PSAB considers to be viable. 



Current developments (continued)

26

Public Sector Accounting Standards

Standard Summary and implications

Concepts 
Underlying Financial 
Performance

– PSAB is in the process of reviewing the conceptual framework that provides the core concepts and objectives 
underlying Canadian public sector accounting standards.

– A Statement of Concepts (“SOC”) and Statement of Principles (“SOP”) were issued for comment in May 2018 and has 
closed. 

– The SOC proposes a revised, ten chapter conceptual framework intended to replace PS 1000 Financial Statement 
Concepts and PS 1100 Financial Statement Objectives. The revised conceptual framework would be defined and 
elaborate on the characteristics of public sector entities and their financial reporting objectives. Additional information 
would be provided about financial statement objectives, qualitative characteristics and elements. General recognition 
and measurement criteria, and presentation concepts would be introduced.

– The SOP includes principles intended to replace PS 1201 Financial Statement Presentation. The SOP proposes:

• Removal of the net debt indicator, except for on the statement of net debt where it would be calculated exclusive of 
financial assets and liabilities that are externally restricted and/or not available to settle the liabilities or financial 
assets.

• Changes to common terminology used in the financial statements, including re-naming accumulated surplus 
(deficit) to net assets (liabilities).

• Restructuring the statement of financial position to present non-financial assets before liabilities.

• Removal of the statement of remeasurement gains (losses) with the information instead included on a new 
statement called the statement of changes in net assets (liabilities). This new statement would present the 
changes in each component of net assets (liabilities).

• A new provision whereby an entity can use an amended budget in certain circumstances.

– Inclusion of disclosures related to risks and uncertainties that could affect the entity’s financial position.



      

      

Appendices

Appendix 1: Audit quality and risk management

Appendix 2: KPMG’s audit approach and methodology

Appendix 3: Lean in Audit™

Appendix 4: Required Communications

27

Appendix 5: Accelerate – Key issues driving the Audit 
Committee Agenda

Appendix 6: Accelerate Report



Appendix 1: Audit quality and risk management

28

KPMG maintains a system of quality control designed to reflect our drive and determination to deliver independent, unbiased
advice and opinions, and also meet the requirements of Canadian professional standards. Quality control is fundamental to our
business and is the responsibility of every partner and employee. The following diagram summarises the six key elements of our
quality control systems. Visit our Audit Quality Resources page for more information including access to our audit quality report,
Audit quality: Our hands-on process.

Audit quality
and risk

management

Independent
monitoring

Other risk
management

quality 
controls

Independence,
integrity, ethics
and objectivity

Personnel
management

Acceptance &
continuance of

clients /
engagements

Engagement
performance

standards

Other controls include:

• Before the firm issues its audit report,
Engagement Quality Reviewer
reviews the appropriateness of key
elements of publicly listed
client audits.

• Technical department and specialist
resources provide real-time support to
audit teams in the field.

We conduct regular reviews of
engagements and partners. Review
teams are independent and the work of
every audit partner is reviewed at least
once every three years.

We have policies and guidance to ensure
that work performed by engagement
personnel meets applicable professional
standards, regulatory requirements and
the firm’s standards of quality.

We do not offer services that would
impair our independence.

All KPMG partners and staff are required
to act with integrity and objectivity and
comply with applicable laws, regulations
and professional standards at all times.

The processes we employ to help retain
and develop people include:
• Assignment based on skills and

experience;

• Performance evaluation;

• Development and training; and
Appropriate supervision and coaching.

We have policies and procedures for
deciding whether to accept or continue a
client relationship or to perform a specific
engagement for that client.

Existing audit relationships are reviewed
annually and evaluated to identify
instances where we should discontinue
our professional association with
the client.

https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/services/audit/audit-quality-resources.html


Appendix 2: KPMG’s audit approach and methodology

29

This year we will expand our use of technology in our audit through our new smart audit platform, 
KPMG Clara.



Appendix 3: Lean in Audit™
An innovative approach leading to enhanced 
value and quality 

Our innovative audit approach, Lean in Audit, further improves audit
value and productivity to help deliver real insight to you. Lean in Audit
is process oriented, directly engaging organizational stakeholders and
employing hands-on tools, such as walkthroughs and flowcharts of
actual financial processes.

By embedding Lean techniques into our core audit delivery process,
our teams are able to enhance their understanding of the business
processes and control environment within your organization – allowing
us to provide a more focused, high quality audit that also identifies
actionable quality and productivity improvement opportunities.

Any insights gathered through the course of the audit will be available
to both engagement teams and yourselves. For example, we may
identify control gaps and potential process improvement areas, while
companies have the opportunity to apply such insights to streamline
processes, inform business decisions, improve compliance, lower
costs, increase productivity, strengthen customer service and
satisfaction and drive overall performance.

How it works

Lean in Audit employs three key Lean techniques:

1. Lean training

Provide basic Lean training and equip our teams with a new Lean
mindset to improve quality, value and productivity.

2. Interactive workshops

Perform interactive workshops to conduct walkthroughs of selected
financial processes providing end to end transparency and
understanding of process and control quality and effectiveness.

3. Insight reporting

Quick and pragmatic insight report including your team’s immediate
quick win actions and prioritized opportunities to realize benefit.

30



Appendix 4: Required communications
In accordance with professional standards, there are a number of communications that are required during 
the course of and upon completion of our audit. These include:

The objectives of the audit, our responsibilities in carrying out our audit,
as well as management’s responsibilities, are set out in the Agreement
for Audit Services made as of October 18, 2017.

Audit planning report

As attached.

Audit findings report

At the completion of our audit, we will provide a report to Council.

Independence

At the completion of our audit, we will confirm our independence to
Council.

Engagement letter Management representation letter

We will obtain from management certain representations at the
completion of the annual audit. In accordance with professional
standards, a copy of the representation letter will be provided to the
Council.

31



Appendix 5: Accelerate – Key issues driving the Audit 
Committee Agenda

32

Audit committees are no strangers to change. The days ahead promise constant technological change and with that
newfound risks. Today’s scale of disruption is rewriting the audit committee’s agenda in unprecedented ways, and it’s a
transformation that demands attention across the board.

In KPMG’s inaugural Accelerate report, we identify seven of the key trends impacting organizations today that are disrupting
the audit committee mandate.

Below are highlighted area’s that may be of interest for the Council and Village

• Data management and security (page 5)

• Automation and the finance function (page 8)

This document can also be found at kpmg.ca/accelerate



33

kpmg.ca/audit

KPMG LLP, an Audit, Tax and Advisory firm (kpmg.ca) and a Canadian limited liability partnership established under the laws of Ontario, is the 
Canadian member firm of KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”).
KPMG member firms around the world have 174,000 professionals, in 155 countries.
The independent member firms of the KPMG network are affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss entity. Each KPMG firm is a legally distinct 
and separate entity, and describes itself as such.
© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/services/audit.html
https://www.linkedin.com/
https://www.linkedin.com/
https://www.youtube.com/
https://www.youtube.com/
https://twitter.com/
https://twitter.com/


Governance & 
Financial Reporting in
Local Government
kpmg.ca
—
January 2019

prichardson
Typewritten Text
4.1b)



2© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Agenda
– Roles and Responsibilities in Financial Reporting

‒ Mayor & Council 
‒ Management / Administration
‒ External Auditor

– What is an audit?

– Audit of Financial Statements

– Financial Reporting Process

– Local Government Financial Statements

– Financial Reporting Terminology

– Common Financial Statement Indicators



3© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Roles & Responsibilities in Financial Reporting

Mayor & Council

Management / 
AdministrationExternal Auditor



4© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Roles & Responsibilities in Financial Reporting  (cont.)
Mayor & Council roles & responsibilities include:
– Overseeing the development and evaluation of the local government’s policies 

and programs
– Reviewing and approving operating and capital budgets
– Ensuring Management accountability for effectiveness of internal controls

– Receiving the annual financial statements
– Providing oversight of processes and control over financial risks
– Providing oversight of the external audit process including consideration of 

matters brought forward by the External Auditor
– Appointment of the External Auditor



5© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Roles & Responsibilities in Financial Reporting  (cont.)
Management / Administration roles & responsibilities include:

– Preparing the local government’s financial or other internal and external 
reporting in accordance with professional standards
– Developing and recommending tax levies and other rates
– Developing and recommending operating and capital budgets
– Preparing accurate monthly financial reporting
– Preparing annual external financial reporting

– Developing and implementing efficient and effective internal control structures 
and processes to respond to organizational and financial risks and to enable 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement

– Addressing and responding to the findings and recommendations of the 
External Auditor and implementing recommendations, as appropriate



6© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Roles & Responsibilities in Financial Reporting  (cont.)
External Auditor roles & responsibilities include:

– Conducting an independent audit of the local government’s financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian Auditing Standards

– Expressing an opinion in the form of an Independent Auditors’ Report on the 
financial statements 

– Obtaining an understanding of the local government’s internal controls for 
purposes of designing appropriate audit procedures, but not for providing an 
opinion on internal controls



7© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

What is an audit?
The purpose of an audit is to add credibility to information presented by an 
organization. 
– Credibility is needed because users of information such as financial statements 

often do not have the ability to determine whether the information reasonably 
reflects an organization’s operations and activities in accordance with existing 
requirements, standards or legislation

Some examples of types of audits are:
– Financial Statement ***
– Financial Information
– Non-Financial Information
– Internal Control over Financial Reporting
– Compliance
– Forensic
– Internal Audits



8© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Audit of Financial Statements
Auditors’ Responsibilities
A financial statement audit is conducted by independent 3rd party auditors and 
includes: 
– Examining, on a test basis, the accounting records and financial statements 

prepared by management
– Evaluating the appropriateness & reasonableness of management’s accounting 

policies, accounting estimates, and related disclosures
– Concluding on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern 

basis
– Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal 
control

– Communicating with those charged with governance regarding findings and 
recommendations



9© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Audit of Financial Statements (cont.)
Auditors’ Responsibilities (cont.)
In obtaining an understanding of internal control, the auditor may detect 
weaknesses in internal control or processes which will be communicated to 
management.

However, an external audit may not reveal all internal control weaknesses 
within an organization, including those that may result from fraud or 
misappropriation.  

An effective internal control environment is Management’s responsibility



10© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Audit of Financial Statements (cont.)
Managements’ Responsibilities
Management is expected to carry out certain responsibilities and to provide 
certain information to the External Auditor, including:
– Preparing, and providing to the External Auditor in a timely manner, all information 

that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements
– Responding to inquiries by the External Auditor
– Providing the External Auditor with unrestricted access to persons within the entity 

from in order to obtain necessary audit evidence
– Designing, implementing, and maintaining effective internal controls over financial 

reporting processes
– Disclosing any known or suspected fraud or illegal acts
– Adopting and applying sound accounting principles and applying sound judgment 

in preparing accounting estimates
– Assessing the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern



11© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Audit of Financial Statements (cont.)
Auditor communications and reporting
As part of an external financial statement audit, the following documents are 
normally issued to Mayor & Council and Management:
– Audit Planning Letter – summarizes the External Auditor’s understanding of risk 

and proposed audit approach
– Audit Findings Letter – summarizes findings from the audit, including a summary 

of corrected and uncorrected audit misstatements
– Management Letter – provides the External Auditor’s observations with respect to 

internal control, including any identified control deficiencies
– Independent Auditors’ Report – provides an audit opinion on the financial 

statements



12© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Financial Reporting Process
Internal 
– Budget prepared by management for 

the coming year and approved by 
council

– Interim variance reporting prepared by 
management comparing actual results 
to the budget and reviewed  by 
council

– Year end financial statements are 
prepared by management 

External 
– External stakeholders have interest in 

your financial results
– Taxpayers
– Residents
– Municipal Finance Authority (“MFA”)
– Province

– Audited financial statements

Local Government financial statements provides useful information for 
evaluating the government’s financial condition at the end of an accounting 

period and its financial performance during the accounting period. 
The financial statements are used to assess whether the organization will 
continue to be able to provide services, achieve its objectives and meet its 

obligations.



13© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Local Government Financial Statements
Financial statement objectives
Public sector accounting standards require that financial statements: 

– Provide an accounting of financial affairs and resources which the government 
controls

– Present information to describe financial position at the end of the fiscal period 
– Provide information to describe changes in a government’s financial position, 

useful in evaluating sources, allocations and consumption of resources, how 
activities have affected net debt, and how the government financed its 
activities and how it met its cash requirements

– Financial statements should demonstrate accountability for resources, 
obligations and financial affairs and assessing whether resources were 
administered within limits established by legislation



14© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Local Government Financial Statements (cont.)
Financial statement presentation
Other general reporting principles required by public sector accounting 
standards include:

– Financial statements should be clearly identified and include acknowledgement 
of the government’s responsibility for their preparation

– Notes and schedules, as well as present prior period figures
– Basis for determining reported amounts should be applied consistently and 

disclosed



15© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Financial Reporting Terminology
Public Sector Accounting Standards (“PSAS”):
– Accounting framework that specifies how transactions and events are to be 

recognized, measured, presented and disclosed in a public sector entity’s 
financial statements

– Governed by the Public Sector Accounting Board, which is an independent body 
established by CPA Canada with the authority to establish accounting standards 
for use by all Canadian public sector entities.

Components of government financial statements:
– Statement of financial position 
– Statement of operations 
– Statement of changes in net financial assets
– Statement of cash flows



16© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Financial Reporting Terminology (cont.)
Statement of financial position 

– Presents the government’s economic resources, obligations and accumulated 
surplus as at a reporting date

Statement of operations 
– Communicates information about changes in the government’s economic 

resources and obligations for the period 
– Provides information about the cost of  the organization’s service delivery 

activities for the period and the extent to which these expenses were funded 
by revenues

Statement of change in net financial assets
– Provides information about the net financial resources the organization has 

available for carrying out its service delivery activities in the future
– Shows the extent to which the organization’s operations have resulted in an 

accumulation or depletion of net financial assets
Statement of cash flows

– Reports the change in cash in the accounting period and how a government 
financed its activities in the period and met its cash requirements



17© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Financial Reporting Terminology (cont.)

Statement of financial position

Financial 
Assets

Economic resources owned by the City
• Cash, Accounts receivable, investments, etc.

Liabilities Amounts the City owes to others 
• Accounts payable, debt, deferred revenue, employee benefits, etc.

Non-
Financial
Assets

Assets that do not normally provide resources to discharge existing 
liabilities but are employed to deliver government services, consumed 
in normal course of operations, are not for sale in normal course of 
operations
• Tangible capital assets, Inventories, Prepaid expenses

Accumulated 
Surplus

Represents the City’s net worth, the net resources available to provide 
future services.  Indicator of overall financial health but does not 
represent a pool of surplus cash.
• Reserves, Equity in non financial assets



18© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Financial Reporting Terminology (cont.)

Statement of operations

Revenues Increases in the economic resources resulting from operations, 
transactions and events of the accounting period
• Taxation, Utility charges, Sale of services, Investment income, 

Contributions

Expenses Decreases in economic resources resulting from operations, 
transactions and events of the accounting period and presented based 
on function rather than object.
• General government, Protective services, Recreation and cultural 

services, etc. (All are comprised primarily of Salaries and Benefits)



19© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

Common Financial Statement Indicators
Net Financial Assets 

– Do you have sufficient net financial assets to pay future liabilities?

Reserves
– Do you have sufficient reserves to cover future operating expense overruns?

Tangible Capital assets
– Do you have sufficient capital asset resources to allow you to continue to 

provide services? Do you have an infrastructure deficit?
– What remaining life do your capital assets have? Do you have a plan to 

replace fully amortized assets?

Revenues less expenses (annual surplus)
– Will revenue cover your expenses for the year or will you be dipping into your 

reserves? 
– Are you receiving and spending according to budget?



Thank you
Contact us

Brandon Ma, CPA, CA
Village of Belcarra Audit Partner
bjma@kpmg.ca 
604 691 3562

Andrew Bordignon, CPA, CA
Village of Belcarra Audit Manager
andrewbordignon@kpmg.ca 
604 455 4017



kpmg.ca

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of 
independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss 
entity. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG 
International.

The information contained herein is of a general nature and is not intended to address the circumstances of 
any particular individual or entity. Although we endeavour to provide accurate and timely information, there 
can be no guarantee that such information is accurate as of the date it is received or that it will continue to be 
accurate in the future. No one should act on such information without appropriate professional advice after a 
thorough examination of the particular situation.

http://kpmg.com/socialmedia


  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: January 14, 2019 
 
From: Nancy Gomerich, NG Consulting 
 
Subject: Current Investment Strategy 
 
 
Recommendation 
That the Village continue with its current investment strategy as outlined in the Current 
Investment Strategy report, dated January 14, 2019; and 
That the Village amend Policy 196 “Financial Plan – Sources and Uses of Funds” to 
insert a policy statement on investments as follows: 

10.  Investments: 
a) Cash investments will be made first to protect and maintain principal 

invested and then to maximize returns; 
b) Liquidity of investments will align with capital and operating needs; and 
c) All available cash investments shall be made with the Municipal Finance 

Authority.  

Purpose 
To provide information on the Village’s current investment strategy and to recommend 
an amendment to the Village Policy 196 for the same. 

Background 
Local Government Investment Limitations  
Under S(183) of the Community Charter the Village’s investment options are limited.  
The Village may only invest in: 

• Non-equity securities guaranteed by Canada, a Province, a Municipality or 
Regional District/Greater Board, or Chartered Banks;  

• Deposits in a savings institution (like a credit union); and/or 
• Securities, or the pooled investment funds, of the Municipal Finance Authority 

(“MFA”). 
However, as MFA can invest in equities, local governments investing in securities or the 
pooled investments funds of the MFA, gain access to this market.  Notably, MFA does 
make limited, high-quality/low-risk equity investments, with the held pooled investment 
funds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.2



Nancy Gomerich, NG Consulting 
Investments Report 
January 14, 2019  Page 2 of 3 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\Current Investment Strategy Report - Jan 14 2018 (002).docx 

 
Village Investment Strategy and Current Investments 
The Village does not have a written investment policy, but the approach has been to 
hold all funds not required to fund current operations with the Municipal Finance 
Authority of BC (“MFA”) in one of its three pooled investment funds.  This approach is 
very common for smaller local governments, with the exception of possibly also 
providing for the investment in a limited amount of longer-term investments in a 
bank/credit union located in the municipality, for the following reasons: 

• Limited funds to invest. 
• Limited available staff expertise and time. 
• The MFA was created for, and is over-seen by a local government Board, and is 

therefore uniquely positioned to act in the best interest of local governments.  
MFA has historically provided investment returns very similar to, or higher than, 
identified bench mark comparisons (i.e. investments over similar terms, with 
similar risk and liquidity profiles). The returns on the MFA pooled investment 
funds are detailed in Attachment A.   

• Administrative simplicity of making, and cashing, the investments. 
 
The Village currently holds about $960,000 in the MFA Bond Fund and moves cash, not 
required to fund on-going operations, to and from the MFA Money Market Fund as 
available/required.  The MFA Bond Fund investment amount is slightly less than the  
Village’s anticipated level of reserves and surplus expected to be maintained in the 
longer-term (about 3 years), based on the 5-Year Financial Plan and historical levels 
(reserves and surplus have not been below $1M since 2009 and have often been much 
higher).   
 
Given recent rising interest rates the Village’s Bond Fund investment has an unrealized 
capital loss of about $22,000, however it is expected that this unrealized loss is 
temporary and will ultimately be reversed in future years (1-3) should the Village 
maintain the Bond Fund investment over this period.  Please see Attachment B, a 
memo by MFA (June 2018) that analysis and recommends an investment strategy for 
municipalities with holdings in the Bond Fund that supports maintaining the current 
Bond Fund investment as the most favorable option. 
 
About the MFA 
The MFA provides long-term, short-term, and equipment financing, investment 
management (via three pooled investment funds), and other financial services to 
communities and public institutions in BC.  Under the Community Charter the MFA must 
be used for all long-term borrowing. 
 
The MFA was created in 1970 to contribute to the financial well-being of local 
governments throughout BC.  The MFA pools the borrowing and investment needs of 
BC communities through a collective structure and is able to provide a range of low cost 
and flexible financial services to local governments equally, regardless of the size of the 
community.  The MFA is independent from the Province of British Columbia and 
operates under the governance of a Board of Members appointed from the various 
Regional Districts within the province. 
 



Nancy Gomerich, NG Consulting 
Investments Report 
January 14, 2019  Page 3 of 3 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\Current Investment Strategy Report - Jan 14 2018 (002).docx 

 
The MFA offers access to three pooled investment funds that are professionally 
managed by Phillips, Hager & North: 

• Money Market Fund – MFA recommends for investment of less than one year 
• Intermediate Fund – MFA recommends for investments from one to three years 
• Bond Fund – MFA recommends for investments of more than three years 

 
Attachments: 

Attachment A – MFA - Pooled Investment Results– November 2018 Report 
Attachment B – MFA - Memo – Investing in the MFA Intermediate and Bond Funds in 

a Rising Interest Rate Environment 
Attachment C – Village of Belcarra Policy 196 “Financial Plan – Sources and Uses of 

Funds” 
 



Phillips, Hager & North Investment Management 1 

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

N
ov

-0
8

N
ov

-0
9

N
ov

-1
0

N
ov

-1
1

N
ov

-1
2

N
ov

-1
3

N
ov

-1
4

N
ov

-1
5

N
ov

-1
6

N
ov

-1
7

N
ov

-1
8

C
en

tra
l B

an
k 

R
at

e 
(%

) 

U.S. Federal Reserve

Bank of Canada

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3 
M

th
s

1 
Ye

ar
2 

Ye
ar

s
3 

Ye
ar

s

5 
Ye

ar
s

7 
Ye

ar
s

10
 Y

ea
rs

20
 Y

ea
rs

30
 Y

ea
rs

Yi
el

d 
(%

)

December 31, 2017

November 30, 2018

MFA of B.C. Pooled Investment Results1 
As of November 30, 2018 

 
1 Month 

Non-
annualized 

% 

3 Months 
Non-

annualized 
% 

Year-to-
Date 
Non-

annualized 
% 

 
 

1 Year 
% 

 
3 Years 

Annualized 
% 

 
5 Years 

Annualized 
% 

Since 
Inception 

Annualized 
%2 

MFA Money Market Fund 0.15 0.45 1.48 1.58 1.10 1.06 3.87 

Custom Benchmark3 0.13 0.35 1.02 1.07 0.62 0.61 3.61 

MFA Intermediate Fund 0.28 0.47 1.53 1.49 1.20 1.26 3.49 
FTSE TMX Canada 365-Day Treasury 
Bill Index 0.25 0.38 1.24 1.13 0.53 0.64 3.10 

MFA Bond Fund 0.51 0.19 0.94 0.50 1.02 1.62 5.85 
FTSE TMX Canada Short Term 
Overall Bond Index 0.57 0.24 0.85 0.37 0.67 1.33 5.57 

1Portfolio and benchmark performance is net of total fees and expenses of 15 basis points per annum (Money Market Fund) and 20 basis points per 
annum (Intermediate & Bond Fund). 
2Inception dates: Money Market Fund – May 1, 1989; Intermediate Fund – March 30, 1994; Bond Fund – May 1, 1989 
3Represents custom benchmark: changed from FTSE TMX Canada 91-day T-Bill Index to FTSE TMX Canada 30-day T-Bill Index effective Jan. 1, 2013  

Market Developments 
Market Interest Rates 

 September 30, 2018 October 31, 2018 November 30, 2018 

3 Month T-bills 1.58% 1.74% 1.70% 

2 Year Gov’t of Canada Bonds 2.21% 2.33% 2.16% 

5 Year Gov’t of Canada Bonds 2.34% 2.43% 2.21% 

30 Year Gov’t of Canada Bonds 2.42% 2.53% 2.40% 

Government of Canada bond yields rose in the beginning of the month, but ultimately ended at their lowest point of the 

month on the last day of November in response to the renewed risk-off atmosphere that permeated the market. The 

increasing negative sentiment was due to a combination of geopolitical developments and uncertainty surrounding global 

trade prospects. Specifically, turbulent global equity markets, an increase in volatility, the massive decline in oil prices, 

particularly for Western Canadian Select (WCS), all contributed to the downturn.  

Overall, Canada yields decreased by approximately 23 basis points in the front end and 14 basis points in the back end of 

the yield curve , while corporate credit spreads widened substantially on the back of weakening sentiment in global capital 

markets. This led to the outperformance of federal and provincial bonds compared to corporate bonds. 

 Central Bank Policy Interest Rates Canadian Yield Curves   

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



Municipal Finance Authority 

Phillips, Hager & North Investment Management 2 

Market Outlook 
The U.S. Federal Reserve (Fed) met in early November and, as was expected, maintained its policy rate at the current 

2.0% to 2.25% level. The accompanying statement was little changed from the prior meeting, which, in the context of 

more mixed U.S. economic data and falling oil prices, resulted in increased investor caution. Later in the month, Fed Chair 

Powell commented that policy rates “remain just below the broad range of estimates of the level that would be neutral for 

the economy,” which market participants interpreted as a signal that the Fed could be slowing, or even pausing, its current 

hiking cycle. That said, market expectations remain for the Fed to increase its policy rate in December as it continues to 

move towards what it deems as a neutral policy rate. With that in mind, we continue to expect short-term U.S. interest 

rates to trend higher over time as the Fed continues along the path to its long-term neutral policy rate. 

The Bank of Canada (BoC) did not meet during November. Economic data through the month continued to support the 

BoC’s desire to reach a neutral monetary policy level with the economy operating close to capacity, unemployment 

remaining near multi-decade lows, and the average of core inflation measures close to the mid-point of the BoC’s target 

inflation range. That said, future rate hikes should continue to be viewed as data-dependent. Looking forward, market 

participants anticipate the next BoC rate hike to occur in the first quarter of 2019, with two to three hikes in total next 

year. As such, we expect the short-end of the Canadian yield curve to continue to trend higher in line with market 

expectations as the BoC moves toward a neutral policy rate. 

Current Strategy 
The Money Market Fund remains focused on building a high quality yield advantage. As such, the Money Market Fund 

remains fully invested in high-quality corporate money market instruments given their attractive risk-adjusted incremental 

yield over similar-term government securities. Similarly, the Money Market Fund also maintains an allocation to longer-

dated corporate money market securities, which results in a longer-than-benchmark average maturity profile. 

The Intermediate and Bond Funds also both favour high quality yield enhancement strategies. The Intermediate Fund 

maintains a maximum allocation to corporate securities, with the government allocation invested entirely in provincial 

securities given their attractive yield advantage relative to federal government securities. Similarly, while the Bond Fund 

continues to have a more defensive risk budget, it maintains a bias towards government agency and corporate credit, rather 

than federal bonds. The incremental yield gained from these holdings should provide a helpful tailwind to performance. 

Structure – As a Percentage of Total Portfolio 

Money Market Fund Intermediate Fund Bond Fund 

Term (Days) Position Change Term (Days) Position Change Term (Years) Position Change 

< 30 36.0% -7.1% < 180 7.4% 3.5% < 1.0 13.5% -1.6% 
31 - 60 28.3% 9.0% 181 - 365 30.0% -2.3% 1.0 - 2.5 30.5% -1.6% 

61 - 90 12.1% -9.4% 366 + 62.6% -1.1% 2.5 - 4.0 25.7% -1.8% 

91- 120 5.8% -0.5%       4.0 - 5.5 27.9% 5.6% 
121 + 17.8% 8.1%       5.5 - 7.0 2.4% -0.6% 

                  

Government 0.0% 0.0% Government 30.1% 0.0% Government 47.98% 5.7% 
Corporate 100.0% 0.0% Corporate 69.9% 0.0% Corporate 42.29% 0.8% 

            Mortgages/MBS 6.82% -0.2% 
            Net Cash 2.91% -6.3% 
                  

Average term 58 days +10 days Average term 1.1 yrs -0.0 yrs Average term 2.8 yrs +0.1 yrs 
Average yield* 1.93% 0.12% Average yield* 2.29% -0.04% Average yield* 2.39% -0.18% 

Total size $1,164.8 mil -$10.2 mil Total size $271.4 mil -$1.6 mil Total size $542.8 mil -$1.4 mil 
*Average yield information is referenced net of total fees and expenses of 15 basis points per annum (Money Market Fund) and 20 basis points per 
annum (Intermediate & Bond Fund). 



 
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  July 12, 2018 
 
TO:  Municipal Finance Authority Members & Clients 
 
RE:  Investing in the MFA Intermediate & Bond Funds in a Rising Interest Rate Environment 
 
 
Recently, some MFA Pooled Fund investors have expressed concerns about holding the MFA 
Intermediate and MFA Bond pooled funds in a rising interest rate environment.  This memo 
responds to these concerns, including those raised by some BC-based investment advisors who 
have not been providing local government investors with a balanced point of view. 

We have listed below several concerns raised and prudent investing guidelines that should be 
considered by investors before making rash decisions based on short-term results: 

1.  “..investing in the MFA Bond Fund is risky in a low and rising interest rate environment… 
when interest rates rise, bond prices fall…” 

It is true that when general interest rates rise, bond prices will fall, all else being equal.  
However, more often than not, a flight to cash and short-term term deposits by fixed income 
investors results in underperformance compared to holding longer-term, fixed income 
investments throughout the cycle. 

While one may experience short-term unrealized capital losses by holding bonds, rising interest 
rates are beneficial to bond investors in the long run because the income they generate in the 
form of coupon payments reinvested at new, higher, interest rates serve to offset short-term 
unrealized capital losses.   

An illustration provided by Phillips, Hager & North (PH&N), the investment manager for the 3 
MFA Pooled Funds, illustrates this principle below.  In the two scenarios presented, the yield at 
the time of initial investment is 2.0%.  Immediately following the initial investment, the effects 
of a rise in general interest rates is presented, demonstrating the impact on the investment’s 
total annualized return over a multi-year time horizon. 

 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



 
 

 

 

Following an interest rate hike, the income is reinvested at a higher yield, making up for the 
initial price loss and eventually offsetting it.  By year three in these illustrations, the portfolio’s 
return has not only caught up to the initial portfolio’s return but exceeds its growth in market 
value and grows faster into the future.  This underscores the benefits of long-term investment 
planning and the importance of not making rash decisions and changing strategy when the 
short-term returns of a given longer-term investment come under pressure. A second example 
below shows that the higher and faster interest rates move up, the higher the future growth.   

 



 

 

Not only are investors who sell immediately after an interest rate hike forgoing the future 
outperformance, but they also are crystalizing what was merely a loss on paper. 

The performance comments above are particularly true for the MFA Intermediate and MFA 
Bond funds, as these maintain duration profiles that are quite short.  For example, the MFA 
Intermediate and MFA Bond fund have average terms of 1 year and 2.6 years, respectively.  
These two MFA pooled funds were designed to provide the opportunity to recoup small 
unrealized capital losses due to the rise of general interest rates.  This goal aligns with the 
return objective of most local governments that need options to invest their permanent 
reserves over longer-term horizons while remaining within the regulatory constraints under 
which they operate.   

 

2. “…the Bond Fund 3-year annualized performance is below the MFA Intermediate Fund and 
the MFA Money Market Fund…” 

If your investment time horizon is longer than the duration of the MFA Bond fund, rising rates 
should ultimately benefit you no matter how large the rate increase. Because the MFA Bond 



 
Fund has a longer-term duration than the MFA Intermediate and MFA Money Market Funds, 
higher price volatility is expected.  This can lead to short-term situations where the total return 
of the MFA Bond Fund is below the two other funds.  However, this situation is expected and 
most often temporary.  As shown in the second illustration above, longer-term time horizons 
enjoy a greater probability that longer-duration fixed income will achieve higher returns.  These 
higher returns reflect the reward that is commensurate with accepting greater interest rate risk 
in a fair and efficient capital market.  

 

3. “…investors are better off utilizing fixed term GICs, which show a higher current yield than 
the MFA Bond Fund…” 

The primary issue with fixed term GICs is one of credit risk of the issuer.  In finance, there is no 
such thing as a ‘free lunch’.  Higher yields are most often indicative of higher investment risk.  
This higher risk may or may not be rewarded depending on the credit strength of the issuer and 
on future unknown and unknowable events. 

Typically, higher GIC yields are offered by financial institutions who have a higher credit risk 
profile.  These could be smaller financial institutions with concentrated business lines, weaker 
balance sheets, and low or limited ability to raise money efficiently and at low cost in the capital 
markets.  It is important to keep credit quality in mind when comparing single issuer-backed 
GIC rates compared to a diversified pool of marketable fixed income investments.  The latter 
offers investors significant diversification and credit-risk protection while the former does not.  

While some unscrupulous investment advisors will talk about a “diversified” portfolio of GICs, 
keep in mind that the health of smaller Canadian financial institutions is very sensitive to 
interest rate levels and Canadian housing prices and so will often experience credit 
deterioration in unison.  Granted, one can diversify geographically across Canada, but this 
diversification is far inferior to buying a large diversified portfolio of corporate and government 
investment-grade issuers who operate varied businesses, in many cases on a global scale.  It is 
also worth remembering that a local government’s revenue streams are very much tied to the 
local economy and housing market, factors that are among the biggest determinants of a local 
credit union’s ability to repay its own debts. 

More alarmingly, BC credit unions are often misjudged as having “no credit risk” due to the 
perceived notion that the province of BC “guarantees” BC Credit Union deposits in full.  In fact, 
the relationship is more complex than is commonly understood.  The Financial Institutions Act 



 
(British Columbia) provides in section 271(5) that if the deposit insurance fund established and 
administered by the Credit Union Deposit Insurance Corporation of British Columbia (CUDIC) is 
impaired, the Lieutenant Governor in Council (commonly referred to as the Cabinet) may direct 
the BC Minister of Finance to repair the fund.  In other words, there is clearly no explicit 
guarantee by the Province of BC to meet the obligations of CUDIC.   

Worse still, in the post financial crisis era, Governments around the world are less likely to bail-
out financial institutions in the future as evidenced by increased regulatory scrutiny and the 
newly introduced “bail-in” regime for banks.  It should also be noted that like any insurance 
entity, CUDIC does not hold reserves, dollar for dollar, to cover 100% of the risks for which it 
provides insurance.  The reality is that if an economic crisis materializes, the financial demands 
on CUDIC could easily outstrip its ability to protect BC credit union deposits.   In fact, there have 
been many instances around the world where deposit insurance has been insufficient to meet 
liquidity needs of depository institutions during a crisis.  While central governments have at 
times bailed out deposit insurance programs to help retail depositors, it is common for 
institutional depositors to have experienced significant losses and receive no government 
relief.  This makes sense as institutional depositors are deemed to not require additional 
extraordinary protection from a government, given their higher level of sophistication relative 
to a retail depositor. 

Summary 

The MFA Intermediate and Bond pooled funds are well designed for the needs of BC local 
government investors.  They are intended for those investors with longer time horizons.  They 
allow easy access to a low-cost, diversified, and professionally managed portfolio of corporate 
and government bonds.  Maximizing returns for the longer term while using these funds, 
however, requires sticking to a plan, remembering the objectives and time horizons of one’s 
portfolio, and to not get unduly influenced by short term results by selling and crystalizing short 
term losses. 

GIC investments will always play an important role in any local government’s portfolio.  They 
are good yield enhancing tools relative to other investment options, but need to be assessed 
critically considering the material credit risks inherent to the sector.  One goal of local 
government investors is to maximize risk-adjusted returns (not just returns!) and having a well- 
constructed, diversified portfolio (by geography and sector) that includes deposits, GICs, 
governments and corporate bonds is a great way to achieve that goal. 



 
To address the needs of MFA clients with very short time horizons, in addition to the MFA 
Money Market fund, we have also recently negotiated very attractive terms for our customers 
for new Pooled High Interest Savings Accounts (PHISAs) with two major Canadian banks.  These 
PHISAs are intended to provide higher-yielding options to BC local governments while investing 
in larger, diversified global financial institutions, thus addressing the diversification and credit 
risk management issues of concentrating too much of one’s portfolio in riskier credit union 
GICs. 

Should you have questions regarding this information, or about your own investment 
portfolio, please contact the MFA at mfa@mfa.bc.ca or 250-383-1181 and we will put you in 
touch with the professional Investment Portfolio Managers at PH&N. 

 

For almost 50 years, the MFA’s mandate has been to provide financial solutions to BC’s Local 
Governments.  Our team of dedicated local government finance specialists provide programs 
and services specifically designed to meet the legislative and operational requirements of our 
clients.  Our non-profit organization is unique in Canada, and prides itself on our 
professionalism, contributions to education and leadership, and cost-savings for all BC 
communities and their tax payers.   
 

mailto:mfa@mfa.bc.ca


  
 

 
Title:  Financial Plan – Sources and Uses of  Funds 
 

ISSUED BY:  CAO APPROVED BY:   COUNCIL DATE
:   Feb 23, 2015 

REVISED 
BY:  APPROVED BY:  DATE

:    

 

Legislative Basis 
The Community Charter authorizes that a municipality may establish policies and 
procedures relative to its financial plan administration and fund management. 

Purpose 
The purpose of this policy is to guide decision making on financial planning issues 
relating to all major sources and uses of funds. 

Policy 
1. Structurally Balanced Operating Budget:  The annual operating budget will be 

structurally balanced such that reoccurring operating revenues will equal or exceed 
recurring operating expenses and debt principle repayment.  Operating revenue and 
expenses are those sources and uses of funds meeting the definition of a revenues 
and expenses under Public Sector Accounting standards; they do not include 
transfers to/from reserves and surplus or debt proceeds.  If a structural imbalance 
occurs, a plan will be developed and implemented to bring the operating budget 
back into balance.  

2. General Operating Statutory Reserve:  The municipality shall maintain a General 
Operating Reserve sufficient to finance operations prior to taxes and fees being 
collected, to fund periodic one-time operating expenses, and to provide contingency 
funding for potential emergency or crisis events.  The target balance of the General 
Operating Statutory Reserve plus the Unrestricted Surplus is equal to the greater of 
$500,000 or six months normalized operating expenses.  If the target balance is not 
met, a plan will be developed and implemented to increase the reserve balance.  
Excess funding may be used for one-time items or capital purposes at the direction 
of Council.  

3. Capital Reserve & Establishment of Capital Funding Envelopes:  Capital 
funding envelopes (“CFE”), being an allocation of annual general revenue funding, 
will be established for all major tangible capital asset (“TCA”) categories that will 
provide sufficient funding to provide for “required” capital expenditures for all 
existing TCA net of any acceptable debt funding (see Debt policy statement below) 
and third party sources.  Annual CFE allocations shall be transferred to a Statutory 
Capital Reserve which shall be the source of general revenue funding for capital 
expenditures on existing TCA.  

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
 

CORPORATE POLICY NO. 196 

J:\Files LF\Administration\policies\Policy 196 Financial Plan - Sources and Uses of Funds.docx 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment C



Corporate Policy No. 196:  Financial Plan – Sources & Uses of Funds 
 
 

2 

 “Required” capital expenditures include maintenance, rehabilitation and 
replacement capital works on existing TCA, including works necessary to meet 
increased service demands and current accepted service-level standards, and are 
those that minimize lifecycle costs and maintain TCA condition to meet minimum 
acceptable levels for health and safety purposes.  To the extent that “Required” 
capital expenditures are not known, the CFE shall be set at the level actually funded 
in the most recent approved budget and then changed each year to reflect the 
change in inflation.  When “Required” capital expenditures are known, to the extent 
that the existing CFE is not sufficient, a plan will be developed and implemented to 
increase the CFE.  Excess CFE funding (considering all TCA categories together) 
may be used for one-time items or other capital purposes at the direction of Council.  

4. Debt:  Annual debt servicing expenditures on long-term debt shall be no greater 
than the target of 10% of “Revenue”.  Revenue is as defined by Provincial 
Regulation (generally, is that reported in the last audited financial statements, 
excluding transfers (grants) for the capital purposes, and contributed or donated 
capital assets), with further adjustments to normalize revenue to remove significant 
one-time amounts.  As a result of the Potable Water Capital Project the target of 
10% is currently exceeded, thus additional debt will not be incurred subject to 
demonstrated benefits exceeding costs and with elector approval in the manner 
detailed in the Community Charter. 

5. One-time Revenues:  One-time revenues such as proceeds from asset sales, debt 
refinancing, revenue spikes (ex. planning & development fees due to a major 
development) and similar revenues shall not be used to fund on-going operating 
expenses.  One-time revenues may be used to fund one-time operating expenses, 
capital expenditures, early debt repayment where the debt is borne by all taxpayers 
in the municipality, or to replenish reserves or surplus to target levels.  

6. User Fees:  User fees shall be set to generate revenues sufficient to pay for the full 
cost of providing the service times the percentage of the service benefit attributed to 
the individual receiving the service (as opposed to the percentage of the benefit 
attributed to the community as whole), adjusted as necessary as determined by 
market factors. 

 Full costs include all direct costs associated with providing the service, amortization, 
and allocated over-head costs for departmental and general government 
operations. 

 Services for which the individual benefit is 100% include: provision of water and 
recycling & refuse services.  The individual benefit for all other services will be set 
by Council after consideration of identified individual and community benefits, 
market, and other relevant factors.  To the extent that Council has not set the 
individual benefit percentage, the fee shall be set on another basis as deemed 
appropriate by Council.  

 Fees will be reviewed and updated normally every five years; in the interim years, 
fees shall be adjusted annually to reflect the change in inflation.  All fees must be 
approved by Council. 

 

J:\Files LF\Administration\policies\Policy 196 Financial Plan - Sources and Uses of Funds.docx 
 



Corporate Policy No. 196:  Financial Plan – Sources & Uses of Funds 
 
 

3 

7. Property Tax Rates:  Property tax rates shall be set to maintain the same property 
tax ratios to the residential property tax class as those set by the Provincial 
Government for property taxes legislated to be calculated on the Hospital 
Assessment.  Adjustments to this policy can be made by Council as determined by 
market and other factors determined to be appropriate.  All tax rates must be 
approved by Council. 

8. Grants:  Staff will seek out and apply for grants that address municipal goals and 
priorities and for which the benefits outweigh the costs.  All grant applications must 
be approved by the Chief Administrative Officer (CAO), subject to review of a grant 
synopsis report that outlines the corporate goals and priorities addressed and 
immediate and on-going costs and benefits. 

9. Funding Non-current Liabilities:  The municipality shall set tax and fee rates to 
fully fund the amount of all non-current liabilities (i.e. post-retirement benefits, etc.) 
as applicable, attributed to and (estimated to be) expensed in the respective year.  
To the extent that accrued non-current liabilities have not been funded in past years, 
a plan will be developed and implemented to fully fund.  

Responsibilities 
1. The Financial Officer has overall responsibility to ensure compliance with this policy. 

2. The Superintendent of Public Works has the responsibility to ensure compliance 
with this policy as it relates to the public works division and the CAO with respect to 
all other departments.  

Reports 
The Financial Officer will prepare a report to Council at the start of the financial plan 
development process detailing the extent to which the policies stated herein have been 
met.  

Policy Review 
A review of this policy will be conducted each year as part of the financial plan 
development process. 

 

J:\Files LF\Administration\policies\Policy 196 Financial Plan - Sources and Uses of Funds.docx 
 



 

 

   

 
 
 
 

Corporate Strategic Plan  
2016 – 2019/2020 

Updated November 2017 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
“Between Forest and Sea” 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.3



 

 

Corporate Strategic Plan Purpose & Process 
This Corporate Strategic Plan (“the Strategic Plan”) is Council’s leadership document for the Village. 
 
The purpose of the Strategic Plan is to provide overall direction and set strategic priorities to focus the Village’s limited resources to best 
support the achievement of a community, and the provision of services, desired by the citizens of Belcarra.   
 
Although the Village is guided by various plans, the Strategic Plan fulfills a need to have a single plan that provides over-riding direction given 
the complexity of our operating environment and the ever-increasing demand on our limited resources.  As such, the Strategic Plan is 
considered the “mother of all plans”, and accordingly, all plans, activities and actions of the Village must be consistent with, and support the 
implementation of, the Strategic Plan. 
 
The Strategic Plan articulates the purpose of the Village (Mission Statement), details Community and Corporate Values to be honored and 
used to guide all actions and decisions, sets out the longer-term direction of the Village (Vision and Goal Statements), and identifies and 
prioritizes a limited number of Strategic Objectives and supporting Strategies and Action Plans.  The Strategic Objectives are the “core” of the 
Strategic Plan as they identify the areas of Village operations, identified by Council, to be the most important to focus on, in order to move 
the Village towards achievement of its longer-term Vision and Goals.  Strategic Objectives are prioritized and limited in number in recognition 
of the Village’s limited resources and existing legislative and operational requirements 
 
The Mission, Vision, Values, Goals, Strategic Objectives and Strategies contained in the Strategic Plan will be revisited and either confirmed 
or amended by Council near the beginning of each new term of Council, augmented by annual review and adjustments as required prior to 
the coming years financial planning process.  In response to Council’s set Strategic Objectives and Strategies the Village’s Management Team 
will develop two year supporting Action Plans that will identify the actions to be undertaken to support their achievement.  The Action Plans 
will be approved by Council and included in the Strategic Plan.  The Action Plans will be reviewed and updated as required, following 
quarterly Progress Reports to Council that identify actions and achievements to date and provide an opportunity to make timely changes 
thereto as approved by Council. 
 



                                                                                    Corporate Plan 2016 -2019/2020, Updated November 2017 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\5.3 2016 - 2019 - 2020 Corporate Plan - Update Nov 2017.doc 

Village of Belcarra Mission  
To enhance the quality of life for citizens, visitors and future generations in our municipality and the region. We strive to live in harmony with 
each other and our environment, while providing core municipal services. 

 

Community Values 

Belcarra is a proud and unique community. 
Belcarra recognizes our municipality’s natural west coast beauty as a source of pride worth protecting. We treasure tradition in our 
community comprised in its welcoming character and accessible allure. 

Belcarra is a model municipal entity that works effectively to engage and respect the diverse interests of its citizens. 
Belcarra celebrates the diverse and active engagement of its citizens and the significance of its volunteerism. Belcarra offers simple and basic 
neighbourhood opportunities to sustain and enrich our lives. We are actively involved in the social, environmental and political life of the 
region. 

Belcarra is a clean, green, semi-rural and sustainable municipality. 
We recognize the importance of the natural beauty surrounding Belcarra and integrate environmental stewardship into our daily activities. 
We respect, preserve and enhance the health of the environment for present and future generations. 

Corporate Values 
The Village of Belcarra supports community engagement and advocates accessible and transparent local government 
administration. 
We utilize clear, consistent and transparent decision-making processes, offering opportunities for input and guidance; embracing change 
while respecting tradition. 
The Village of Belcarra fosters civic stability and security. 
Our semi-rural setting provides a distinct perspective within the regional district, and the municipality seeks to represent the interests of 
those in similar environments while supporting economic, social and community consistency and sustainability. In endeavoring to preserve 
health and safety, we consider the needs and well being of the community, our operations and our physical environment. 
The Village of Belcarra promotes wellness and progression in the workplace. 
We embrace principles which facilitate staff empowerment, development and succession opportunities, while striking a balance between 
home and work life.  



                                                                                    Corporate Plan 2016 -2019/2020, Updated November 2017 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\5.3 2016 - 2019 - 2020 Corporate Plan - Update Nov 2017.doc 

Village of Belcarra Vision & Goals 
We are committed to achieving social, environmental and economic sustainability. Given the value of our community’s heritage and its 
diversification, we will harness a balance between consistency and progression – enhancing the livability, health, safety and 
civic pride for future generations of Belcarra.  
 

Community Sustainability: 
Goal 1 Individuals and groups have a collective sense of belonging and contributing to the municipality, and       

the municipality’s social, political, economic and cultural life.  
Goal 2 Volunteerism is an integral component of community sustainability and is encouraged. 
Goal 3 Individuals have access to the natural amenities of the area and feel safe and secure in doing so. 
 
Environmental Sustainability 
Goal 1 Awareness of environmental impacts results in active public participation in environmental improvements.  
Goal 2 Human activities and consumption are balanced with the environment's ability to absorb emissions and impacts. 
Goal 3 The health of residents is protected from environmental risks. 
 
Governance: 
Goal 1 We are a model of open, accessible, democratic decision-making processes.  We encourage and embrace dialogue         

encouraging residents to contribute their ideas, opinions, and energy to the well being of the municipality. 
 Goal 2 The municipality has appropriate legislative authority, financial tools and organizational structures and processes 

to undertake its responsibilities and achieve goals that support and enhance the municipality’s quality of life 
within its financial capacity. 

Goal 3 Core Public services are appropriate for community needs, of high quality, well-coordinated and easy to access. 
Goal 4 The Village of Belcarra actively engages with other orders of government particularly regarding issues affecting 

the municipality. 
 
 



                                                                                    Corporate Plan 2016 -2019/2020, Updated November 2017 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\5.3 2016 - 2019 - 2020 Corporate Plan - Update Nov 2017.doc 

 
Economic Sustainability:  
Goal 1 The Village of Belcarra has the necessary social, budgetary and physical infrastructure to ensure sustainability  

as a municipality. 
Goal 2 Long term financial planning with minimal debt financing, focused on maintaining and acquiring quality 

infrastructure. 
Goal 3 Projects and initiatives are evaluated against sustainability. 
 



 

 

Village of Belcarra Strategic Objectives/Priorities, Strategies and Action Plans 
 
The following Strategic Objectives/Priorities identify topic areas and strategies and specific action plans where staffs limited discretionary 
time, beyond the day-to-day operational requirements, should be focused in order to best move the Village toward achievement of its’ Vision.  
They are not intended to, nor do they, encompass everything that the Village does or all services.  These Plans are prioritized with significant 
focus directed to the top one to four items. 



                                                                                    Corporate Plan 2016 -2019/2020, Updated November 2017 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\5.3 2016 - 2019 - 2020 Corporate Plan - Update Nov 2017.doc 

 
 
 
Priority # 1 –  Municipal Bylaws & Policies, Review/Update – 2018 FOCUS: ZONING BYLAW, HIGHWAY 
ENCROACHMENT BYLAW, PARKING BYLAW 
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2017 Plan 2017 Results 2018 Plan 2019/2020  Plan 

Ensure key municipal 
bylaws and policies 
meet legislative and 
operational 
requirements 

Identify, prioritize and 
review and update 
municipal Bylaws and 
policies  

• Complete review 
and update of 
the Zoning Bylaw 
with the Zoning 
Advisory 
Committee and 
Planning 
Consultants 
- Prepare Draft 

and finalize 
with Council 

- Hold Public 
Hearing 

- Obtain Council 
approval  

 
 

• Worked with 
Consultants and the 
Zoning Advisory 
Committee (“ZAC”) 
to substantially 
complete Zoning 
Bylaw review and 
update  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

• Complete review 
and update of the 
Zoning Bylaw  
- Prepare Draft and 

finalize with 
Council 

- Hold Public 
Hearing 

- Obtain Council 
approval 

 
• Complete review 

and update of 
Highway 
Encroachment 
Bylaw & 
Agreements 

 
• Parking/MTI 

Bylaw review 
and update 

- Hire consultant 
- Update bylaw 
-  Develop   
supporting 
policy/procedures 

 
 

 

• Possible NEW 
options include: 
- MTI Bylaw 
- Tree Bylaw 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



                                                                                    Corporate Plan 2016 -2019/2020, Updated November 2017 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\5.3 2016 - 2019 - 2020 Corporate Plan - Update Nov 2017.doc 

 
 
 
Priority # 2 – Public Safety  – Non Vehicle Travel – 2018 FOCUS: TRAIL & ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS 
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2017 Plan 2017 Results 2018 Plan 2019 /2020 Plan 

Improve non-
vehicle 
(pedestrian, bike 
etc.): 

- Safety on 
roadways 

- Trails 
 

Increase driver 
awareness 
 
Identify and 
implement new and 
improved signage 
and/or physical 
roadway 
changes/additions 
 
Identify and 
implement new and 
improved trail options  
 

New and improved 
signage and/or 
physical roadway 
changes/additions 
• Establish budget 

for improvements 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Identify and implement 
new and improved trail 
options  
• Identify/Prioritize 

and complete 
possible 
improvements 
 
 

• Improved / 
additional road 
signage 

• Bedwell Bay 
Road cat eyes 
installed 

• Roads Asset 
Management 
Plan identified, 
prioritized and 
set budgets for 
all roads safety 
issues 

 
 
• Obtained cost 

estimates for 
priority trail 
improvements 

• Completed 
- Upper Tatlow 
- Phase I Watson 

 

Address prioritized road 
safety concerns 
identified in the 2017 
Asset Management Plan  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• Complete priority 

trail works: 
- Middle Tatlow 
- Phase II Watson 

• Identify and apply 
for all possible 
grants to fund 
planned capital 
works in 2018 

 

• To be 
determined 

 



                                                                                    Corporate Plan 2016 -2019/2020, Updated November 2017 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\5.3 2016 - 2019 - 2020 Corporate Plan - Update Nov 2017.doc 

 
Priority # 3 –  Transportation Infrastructure – 2018 FOCUS: REFINE & IMPLEMENT TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL PLAN 
 

Objective Strategy 2017 Plan 2017 Results 2018 Plan 2019 /2020 Plan 
 

Infrastructure 
meets current and 
future community 
needs 

Develop infrastructure 
Long-Term Asset 
Management and 
Financial Plan(s) that 
identifies 
maintenance, and 
capital expenditure 
needs and supporting 
funding plan 
 

• Complete Roads 
Long Term Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Plan completed 
and reviewed with 
Council 

• Refine plan via 
obtaining geotech 
report on priority 
road works and 
retaining walls 
 

• Develop prioritized 
10 year funding 
plan 

 
• Address prioritized 

safety concerns 
identified in the 
2017 Asset 
Management Plan  

 
• Implement 

recommended Crack 
Fill etc. maintenance 
programs detailed in 
the 2017 Asset 
Management Plan 

 
• Identify and apply 

for all possible 
grants to fund 
planned capital 
works in 2018 

 

• To be 
determined 

 



                                                                                    Corporate Plan 2016 -2019/2020, Updated November 2017 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\5.3 2016 - 2019 - 2020 Corporate Plan - Update Nov 2017.doc 

 
Priority # 4 –  Recreation Infrastructure – 2018 FOCUS: TENNIS COURTS 
 

Objective Strategy 2017 Plan 2017 Results 2018 Plan 2019 /2020 Plan 
 

Infrastructure 
meets current and 
future community 
needs 

Develop infrastructure 
Long-Term Asset 
Management and 
Financial Plan(s) that 
identifies 
maintenance, and 
capital expenditure 
needs and supporting 
funding plan 
 

Conclude operational 
status review and 
update with Metro 
Parks 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Metro Vancouver 
Board approval 
for Tennis Court 
License 
(expected in 
October 2017) 
 

• Reviewed court 
condition and 
obtained quotes 
for needed repairs 
and updates 

• Prioritize needed 
repairs and develop 
implementation and 
funding plan (phase 
works if reasonable) 

• To be 
determined 



                                                                                    Corporate Plan 2016 -2019/2020, Updated November 2017 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\5.3 2016 - 2019 - 2020 Corporate Plan - Update Nov 2017.doc 

 
Priority # 5 – Drainage Infrastructure  – 2018 FOCUS: LONG TERM DRAINAGE CAPITAL PLAN 
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2017 Plan 2017 Results 2018 Plan 2019/2020 Plan 

Drainage (and 
related) 
infrastructure 
meets community 
needs and 
provides protection 
from climate 
change related 
events 

Update/Identify risks and 
requirements 
(maintenance & capital) to 
address drainage needs 

• Phase I - Terms 
of Reference for 
Proposal (RFP) - 
draft in process 
with Consultant 

• Complete 
Drainage Study 
Phase I 
- Complete 

mapping and 
RFP 

- Issue and 
award RFP 

- Complete 
preliminary 
review of Study 
and identify 
next steps 

 
 

• Phase I 
completed 

• Draft and Issue RFP 
/w Consultant for 
Drainage Asset Mgmt 
Plan, to identify 
operating and capital 
needs /w focus on 
next 10 years 

• Apply for grant 
funding for Plan 

• Complete Drainage 
Long Term Plan 

• Consider and address 
any Bylaw changes 

 
 

• To be 
determined 
 



                                                                                    Corporate Plan 2016 -2019/2020, Updated November 2017 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\5.3 2016 - 2019 - 2020 Corporate Plan - Update Nov 2017.doc 

 
Priority # 6 – Emergency Preparedness – 2018 FOCUS: BASIC SUPPLIES UPDATE & ESTABLISH EMERGENCY 
PREPAREDNESS COMMUNITY GROUP  
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2017 Plan 2017 Results 2018 Plan 2019/2020 Plan 

Ensure 
emergency plans 
and supplies are 
up to date and 
relevant in the 
event of an 
emergency  

Identify and update 
the municipality’s 
emergency supplies 
and review and 
update emergency 
plan 

• Prepare inventory 
of current 
emergency 
supplies and 
replenish 
identified needs 
 

• Facilitate creation 
of Community 
Group to lead 
Emergency 
Preparedness 
efforts 

• Not complete • Prepare inventory of 
current emergency 
supplies and replenish 
identified needs 
 
 
 

• Facilitate creation of 
Community Group to 
lead Emergency 
Preparedness efforts 

To be determined 
Options: 
• Hire consultant to 

lead and facilitate 
process to review 
and update 
emergency plan 

• Complete other 
key supporting 
plans: 
- Geotechnical 

Hazard 
Mapping 

- Wildfire 
Assessment 

 
 



                                                                                    Corporate Plan 2016 -2019/2020, Updated November 2017 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\5.3 2016 - 2019 - 2020 Corporate Plan - Update Nov 2017.doc 

 
Priority # 7 – Water Infrastructure – 2018 FOCUS: WATER METERING & LONG TERM WATER SYSTEM PLAN  
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2017 Plan 2017 Results 2018 Plan 2019/2020 Plan 

Infrastructure 
meets current and 
future community 
needs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Increase 
benefiter/user pay 
component of 
water fee and 
encourage water 
conservation 
 

Develop infrastructure 
Long-Term Asset 
Management and 
Financial Plan(s) that 
identifies 
maintenance, and 
capital expenditure 
needs and supporting 
funding plan 
 
 
Consider 
implementing 
community water 
metering 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
• Complete update 

of meter 
information 
 
 
 
 
 

• Communicate 
status of Project 
to community 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• Basic update 

complete and 
high-level review 
of costs vs. 
benefits complete 
 
 
 

• Complete 

Using existing inventory 
data develop a high-level 
Asset Management Plan 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Review 2018 Metro 
Vancouver study of 
water metering for 
region once complete 
  

• Update water metering 
business case 

• To be 
determined 

 



                                                                                    Corporate Plan 2016 -2019/2020, Updated November 2017 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\5.3 2016 - 2019 - 2020 Corporate Plan - Update Nov 2017.doc 

 
 
Priority # 8 – Operational Efficiency – 2018 FOCUS: RECORDS MANAGEMENT 
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2017 Plan 2017 Results 2018 Plan 2019/2020 Plan 

Support and 
enhance 
operational 
efficiency and 
ensure legislative 
requirements are 
met  

Establish and 
implement policy and 
procedures with 
respect to the 
retention, storage and 
disposal of municipal 
records 

• Identify Records 
Management 
needs and issues 
and develop a 
Plan to address, 
using contracted 
services 
 

• Begin 
implementation 
of Plan (initial 
focus is to 
develop a records 
retention and 
destruction 
policy) 
 

Not completed Complete initial project 
planning if time permits 

 

• Identify Records 
Management 
needs and issues 
and develop a 
Plan to dress, 
using contracted 
services 
 

• Begin 
implementation 
of Plan (initial 
focus is to 
develop a records 
retention and 
destruction 
policy) 
 

 
 
 
  



                                                                                    Corporate Plan 2016 -2019/2020, Updated November 2017 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\5.3 2016 - 2019 - 2020 Corporate Plan - Update Nov 2017.doc 

 
The following Strategic Objectives are high priorities of Council that are currently being addressed within Village operations.  They are 
included in the Strategic Plan due to their high priority nature and the desire to continue to more closely monitor and prioritize their on-going 
delivery. 
 
Vegetation Management  
 

Objective Strategy 2017 – 2020 
 

Management and 
reduction of invasive 
plants within municipal 
boundaries.  

Implement a phased 
approach for invasive 
plant control using 
contemporary 
management techniques 
and education outreach 
 

• Continue to consult with Invasive Species Council of Metro Vancouver, and other 
relevant authorities, and implement annual recommendations for invasive plant 
removal and community education, within financial plan constraints 

 
Recycling & Refuse  
 

Objective Strategy 2017 – 2020  
 

Meet Metro Vancouver’s 
Zero Waste Initiative 

Research and implement actions to 
meet Metro Vancouver's 
requirements to remove from the 
waste stream and recycle organic 
waste  
 

• Continue to monitor and fine-tune the Recycling & Refuse Deport and related 
community education. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\Bylaw 528, 2018 Revenue Anticipation Borrowing 
Bylaw.docx 

  

A Bylaw to provide for borrowing of money as may be requisite to meet the current 
lawful expenditures for the Village of Belcarra for the year 2019 

WHEREAS the Council of the Village of Belcarra, hereinafter called the “Village”, is 
empowered by section 177 of the Community Charter to provide, by bylaw, for the 
borrowing of such sums of money as may be requisite to meet the 2019 lawful 
expenditures of the Village, such borrowing not to exceed at any time the aggregate 
sum of: 

a) The entire amount remaining unpaid of the taxes for all purposes during the year 
2019; 

AND WHEREAS prior to the adoption of the annual rates bylaw in any year, the taxes in 
the current year shall be deemed to be seventy-five per cent (75%) of all taxes levied for 
all purposes in the preceding year; 

AND WHEREAS the aggregate sum that the Village may presently borrow calculated in 
accordance with the foregoing is: $1,330,000. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Municipal Council of the Village of Belcarra, in open meeting 
assembled, enacts as follows: 

1.  This bylaw shall be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Revenue 
 Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 528, 2018”. 

2.  The Village of Belcarra is hereby authorized and empowered to borrow upon the 
 credit of the Village from the TD Canada Trust or Municipal Finance Authority, 
 the sum of one million three hundred thirty thousand dollars ($1,330,000.00) in 
 such amounts and at such times as the same may be required and to pay 
 interest thereon. 

3.  The form of obligation to be given as an acknowledgement of the liability shall be 
 a promissory note or notes bearing the corporate seal and signed by the Mayor 
 and the Chief Administrative Officer of the Village. 

4.  All unpaid taxes and the taxes of the current year when levied or so much thereof 
 may be necessary shall, when collected, be used to repay the money so 
 borrowed. 

5.  If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then 
 the invalid portion must be severed and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to 
 have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, 
 subparagraph, clause or phrases. 

 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Revenue Anticipation Borrowing 

Bylaw No. 528, 2018 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
7.1



Village of Belcarra Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 528, 2018 2 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\01 14 2019\Bylaw 528, 2018 Revenue Anticipation Borrowing 
Bylaw.docx 

 

Read a First Time on December 10, 2018 

 

Read a Second Time on December 10, 2018 

 

Read a Third Time on December 10, 2018 

 

ADOPTED by the Council  

 

 

   
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

 

This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Revenue Anticipation 
Borrowing Bylaw No. 528, 2018 

 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 
 

 



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2













prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6









prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7













prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.8



























prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.9



prichardson
Typewritten Text


	That the Village continue with its current investment strategy as outlined in the  Current Investment Strategy report dated January 14, 2019; and
	That the Village amend Policy 196 “Financial Plan – Sources and Uses of Funds” to insert a policy statement on investments as follows:
	“10.  Investments:
	a) Cash investments will be made first to protect and maintain principal invested and then to maximize returns;
	b) Liquidity of investments will align with capital and operating needs; and
	c) All available cash investments shall be made with the Municipal Finance Authority.”
	3.1 2018 12 03 - Special Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Certified Correct:

	3.2 2018 12 10 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	That the 2019 Budget – Discussion Items report from N. Gomerich, Financial Consultant, dated December 3, 2018 be received for information.
	Certified Correct:

	4.1 a) 18 VOB APR - Final.pdf
	Village of Belcarra
	Table of contents
	Considerations in developing �our Audit Plan
	Materiality
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Key deliverables and milestones
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	The 2018 Auditors’ Reports
	The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
	The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
	The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
	The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
	The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
	The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
	The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
	The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
	The 2018 Auditors’ Reports (continued)
	Current developments
	Current developments (continued)
	Current developments (continued)
	Current developments (continued)
	Appendices
	Appendix 1: Audit quality and risk management
	Appendix 2: KPMG’s audit approach and methodology
	Appendix 3: Lean in Audit™
	Appendix 4: Required communications
	Appendix 5: Accelerate – Key issues driving the Audit Committee Agenda�
	Slide Number 33

	4.1 b) KPMG Enterprise - Financial Reporting Concepts (2018) - VOB.PDF
	Governance & Financial Reporting in�Local Government
	Agenda
	Roles & Responsibilities in Financial Reporting
	Roles & Responsibilities in Financial Reporting  (cont.)
	Roles & Responsibilities in Financial Reporting  (cont.)
	Roles & Responsibilities in Financial Reporting  (cont.)
	What is an audit?�
	Audit of Financial Statements
	Audit of Financial Statements (cont.)
	Audit of Financial Statements (cont.)
	Audit of Financial Statements (cont.)
	Financial Reporting Process
	Local Government Financial Statements
	Local Government Financial Statements (cont.)
	Financial Reporting Terminology
	Financial Reporting Terminology (cont.)
	Financial Reporting Terminology (cont.)
	Financial Reporting Terminology (cont.)
	Common Financial Statement Indicators
	Thank you
	Slide Number 21

	5.2 Current Investment Strategy Report - Jan 14 2018 (002).pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: January 14, 2019
	From: Nancy Gomerich, NG Consulting
	Subject: Current Investment Strategy
	Recommendation
	That the Village continue with its current investment strategy as outlined in the Current Investment Strategy report, dated January 14, 2019; and
	That the Village amend Policy 196 “Financial Plan – Sources and Uses of Funds” to insert a policy statement on investments as follows:
	10.  Investments:
	a) Cash investments will be made first to protect and maintain principal invested and then to maximize returns;
	b) Liquidity of investments will align with capital and operating needs; and
	c) All available cash investments shall be made with the Municipal Finance Authority.
	Purpose
	To provide information on the Village’s current investment strategy and to recommend an amendment to the Village Policy 196 for the same.
	Background
	Attachments:
	Policy 196 Financial Plan - Sources and Uses of Funds.pdf
	Title:  Financial Plan – Sources and Uses of Funds
	Legislative Basis
	The Community Charter authorizes that a municipality may establish policies and procedures relative to its financial plan administration and fund management.
	Purpose
	Policy
	Responsibilities
	Reports
	Policy Review


	5.3 2016 - 2019 - 2020 Corporate Plan - Update Nov 2017.pdf
	Corporate Strategic Plan Purpose & Process
	Village of Belcarra Mission


	7.1 Bylaw 528, 2018 Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw.pdf
	Read a First Time on December 10, 2018
	Read a Second Time on December 10, 2018
	Read a Third Time on December 10, 2018
	ADOPTED by the Council
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 528, 2018




